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          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Please come to

          3  order. Please.  Good morning and thank you for

          4  joining us this morning. Today is Tuesday, September

          5  19, 2006.  Let me just introduce everyone here.  My

          6  colleagues on the dais, to my right is Public

          7  Advocate Betsy Gotbaum, Sahara Asad Salimi

          8  (phonetic) is the Counsel to the Committee and my

          9  colleague, Jimmy Vacco of the Bronx  -- forgive me

         10  Jimmy  -- and to my left, John Liu of Queens, Maria

         11  del Carmen Arroyo of the Bronx and Jessica Lappin of

         12  Manhattan.  Forgive me my colleagues.  It has been a

         13  long day already.  I was in traffic for an hour and

         14  a half.  They say the best way to get around

         15  Manhattan is to jump on the subway.  So, maybe next

         16  time I'll learn.

         17                 Today, the Education Committee will

         18  hear Intro. Number 344.  A bill that would require

         19  the Department of Education to report statistics

         20  relating to the students receiving special education

         21  services.  The bill would require the Department of

         22  Education to create and maintain detailed files for

         23  students receiving any special education services

         24  and to prepare an annual report, based on these

         25  files, that must be submitted to the City Council of
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          2  New York, the Public Advocate's Office and to the

          3  Citywide Council on Special Education within 90 days

          4  of the end of the academic period.

          5                 Statistics in the report must be

          6  desegregated by district, by school and by English

          7  language learner status and must include the

          8  following information:  The numbers of referrals

          9  made, numbers of evaluations and re- evaluations

         10  conducted, numbers of placements made, numbers of

         11  students receiving services included in their

         12  Individualized Education Programs, commonly known as

         13  IEPs, and the number of evaluations and placements

         14  not completed at the end of the year.

         15                 The Public Advocate, Betsy Gotbaum,

         16  is the prime sponsor of this bill and she will be

         17  making opening remarks as well.  I will leave it to

         18  her to explain the reasons why the bill was drafted.

         19    But, what I will say is that both the Public

         20  Advocate's office and the City Council have received

         21  numerous complaints from parents concerning the

         22  slowness of the special education evaluation and

         23  placement process.

         24                 We have heard some parents say that

         25  their kids have been referred for an evaluation and
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          2  haven't received one. We've heard other parents say

          3  that their children actually have an Individualized

          4  Education Program or IEP, but aren't receiving the

          5  services they are entitled to, for whatever the

          6  reason may be.

          7                 Keep in mind, that under state

          8  regulations, the Department of Education is required

          9  to evaluate and arrange for provision of appropriate

         10  services to a school age student with a disability

         11  within 60 days of receiving parental consent for

         12  evaluation.  For students have been determined to

         13  have a disability and who have been referred for a

         14  re- evaluation, the Department of Education has 60

         15  days to arrange for services from the date of

         16  referral.

         17                 What this means is that the

         18  Department of Education has 60 days to do

         19  everything, evaluate a child, develop an IEP for

         20  that child and implement the IEP once their parent

         21  has agreed to allow his or her child to be

         22  evaluated.  What we are hearing from parents

         23  anecdotally is that the Department of Education may

         24  not be complying with this time frame.  If that is,

         25  in fact, the case, we need to know why.
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          2                 It is for this reason that we are

          3  also conducting an Oversight Hearing on the

          4  inefficiency of the evaluation and placement

          5  process.  Our goal here today is to gain a detailed

          6  understanding of why this system is inefficient and

          7  what can we do to make it better.

          8                 I should mention that the Education

          9  Committee, under the former Chair, Council Member

         10  Eva Moskowitz, held two Hearings in the past on

         11  special education.  The first Hearing was held on

         12  June 4, 2003 and focused on the Department of

         13  Education's plans to reform the City's special

         14  education system.  The second Hearing was held on

         15  October 7, 2005.  It focused on the Department of

         16  Education's commissioned Comprehensive Management

         17  Review and evaluation of special education.

         18                 The Comprehensive Management Review

         19  was a detailed assessment of DOE's reorganization of

         20  special education programs, written by outside

         21  consultants that the Department of Education hired.

         22                 We will be delving deeper into some

         23  of the findings of the report today, especially

         24  those relating to data management and the role of

         25  the school psychologist in the evaluation and
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          2  placement process.  So, without any further delay, I

          3  will turn the mic over to the New York City Public

          4  Advocate, Betsy Gotbaum.

          5                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:  Thank you

          6  Chair Jackson and thank you very much for allowing

          7  me to introduce this important legislation and for

          8  having this Hearing.

          9                 I'd like to start by explaining the

         10  background that led me to introduce this special

         11  education reporting bill.

         12                 In March of 2004, my office conducted

         13  a survey of nearly 300 school psychologists and

         14  administrators, to find out how the Department of

         15  Education's changes or reforms to special education

         16  were affecting the system.  75 percent of the school

         17  psychologists, 75 percent of the school

         18  psychologists said that they had a backlog of

         19  students awaiting special ed. Placements. 74 percent

         20  of the psychologists said they had been given a

         21  direct order to keep referrals and evaluations down

         22  or to a minimum. Just stick them in a drawer or they

         23  knew of someone who had been given a similar order.

         24  The majority of administrators told us the same

         25  thing.
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          2                 At this time, at that time  -- sorry

          3   -- the Department of Education dismissed these

          4  findings.  But, months later, representatives of the

          5  Department of Education acknowledged that thousands

          6  of students were not getting the services they

          7  needed and the City committed $8 million to a summer

          8  make up session.

          9                 One summer was not enough to get the

         10  system back on track, however, and there is still a

         11  long way to go before the problems in special ed.,

         12  the problems in the special ed. System are resolved.

         13                 Since then, my office has handled

         14  many calls from parents with children, for one

         15  reason or another, are not getting services that are

         16  essential to their education.  One of the most

         17  common complaints is that even after their children

         18  have gone through the onerous process of being

         19  referred, evaluated and assigned an Individualized

         20  Education Program, the DOE simply ignores the

         21  provisions of that IEP.

         22                 Two weeks ago, on Thursday, September

         23  7th, my office got a call from a woman named Darleen

         24  Werts.  It was two days after the start of school

         25  and her daughter, a special ed. Student, was sitting
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          2  at home because she had not been placed in high

          3  school.  Mrs. Werts was going to come today, but she

          4  couldn't take off from work again.  But, listen to

          5  what she had to say, and we have heard this from

          6  many parents:

          7                  "I have been in contact with the

          8  school Tiana attended last year and was told that

          9  the papers were faxed to the district office but the

         10  district office has not replied.  I have attempted

         11  to contact the district office but cannot because

         12  they do not answer their phones or answer their

         13  voice mail.  I have to take time off from work to do

         14  their job and go in person to the Department of

         15  Education in hopes that this will be resolved. Tiana

         16  has a learning disability, and entering a new school

         17  late can be traumatic, but more than that, it can be

         18  the cause of her academic failure."

         19                 Fortunately, Mrs. Wets is very

         20  tenacious.  She did not take a day off, she did take

         21  a day off from work and after hours of waiting for

         22  the DOE to find her daughter's records, she obtained

         23  a placement for her daughter.  But, because of the

         24  long delay, there were few open slots left and Tiana

         25  was placed with little concern for her special
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          2  needs.

          3                 It could have been worse.  What if

          4  Mrs. Werts hadn't been able to take a day off from

          5  work?  Tiana missed a full week of school.  How many

          6  children are still sitting at home waiting to be

          7  placed?

          8                 My office has received complaints

          9  from parents whose children aren't getting special

         10  bus service they need, whose children have been

         11  placed in classrooms that aren't equipped to

         12  accommodate their physical condition or placed in

         13  classes with a student/teacher ratio far higher than

         14  what is spelled out in their IEPs.

         15                 Clearly, the voices of these parents

         16  are not being heard.  That's why I'm working to

         17  launch a program that would train a corps of

         18  volunteers to accompany parents to IEP committee

         19  sessions.  The volunteers would be able to provide

         20  parents with information, advice, and representation

         21  they need to ensure their children get the services

         22  they're entitled to.

         23                 It is critical that we provide these

         24  families with individual attention and assistance.

         25  But, it is just as critical that as their elected
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          2  representatives, we closely monitor the Department's

          3  management of the entire special education system,

          4  identify problems and advocate for necessary

          5  reforms.

          6                 The bill I've introduced would make

          7  such monitoring possible.  It would require the

          8  Department to create and maintain detailed files for

          9  each student seeking or receiving special education

         10  services and to prepare an annual report, based on

         11  those files, for my office, the City Council and the

         12  Citywide Council on Special Education.

         13                 The annual report would include 19

         14  specific statistics relating to the provision of

         15  special education services, including the number of

         16  referrals made, the number of evaluations conducted

         17  and the number of placements made and how long it

         18  takes the Department to accomplish each step in the

         19  process.  This data would make it possible to

         20  measure the effectiveness of the Department's

         21  policies.

         22                 While there is some limited overlap

         23  between the reporting requirements in my bill and

         24  those outlined in the federal law, IDEA 2004, my

         25  bill addresses a narrower set of concerns.  The
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          2  statistics outlined in my bill were chosen to

          3  address problems specific to the City's education,

          4  special education system, including the backlog of

          5  referrals and evaluations.

          6                 Let me make it very clear, that if it

          7  were not for the fact that the 300 psychologists,

          8  many of whom reached out to us, if they had not

          9  filled out our survey, we would have never been able

         10  to find out what was going on from the IDEA 2004

         11  reports.  So, that is why we introduced this

         12  legislation, so that we will be able to get these

         13  reports and assess what's really going on.

         14                 In addition, unlike the IDEA, my bill

         15  requires that data be disaggregated by district and

         16  region.  This is an important distinction.  The

         17  extent of the problems with special ed. Varies

         18  significantly from region to region.  Parents,

         19  advocates and elected officials should be able to

         20  determine what is taking place in their part of the

         21  City.

         22                 We cannot expect the DOE to simply be

         23  accountable for the problems in special education.

         24  We must hold the Department accountable and work

         25  towards long- term, systemic solutions, so that all
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          2  students in New York City get the services they need

          3  to learn.  That's the purpose of the legislation

          4  that I'm asking the Council to consider today.

          5  Thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you

          7  Public Advocate Betsy Gotbaum.  We appreciate your

          8  opening statement.  Let me just introduce my other

          9  colleagues that are here, that were not recognized

         10  earlier.  To my far right is Simcha Felder of

         11  Brooklyn, Peter Vallone of Queens and Oliver

         12  Koppell, to my left, from the Bronx.

         13                 With that, I'd like to introduce our

         14  first individuals that are testifying this morning,

         15  Linda Wernikoff, the Deputy Superintendent of

         16  Special Education Initiatives from the Department of

         17  Education and Michael Best, General Counsel of the

         18  Department of Education.  Good morning and welcome.

         19  Do you have an opening statement or do you have a

         20  statement to read? Please.

         21                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  I will begin.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Be my guest.

         23                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  Good morning

         24  Chairperson Jackson, Public Advocate Gotbaum and

         25  Members of the Education Committee. My name is Linda
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          2  Wernikoff.  I am the Senior Instructional Manager

          3  for Special Ed. Initiatives at the Department of

          4  Education.  I am delighted to be able to talk to you

          5  today about the reforms we've made to special

          6  education.

          7                 The Department of Education continues

          8  to strive to improve educational outcomes for

          9  students with disabilities as a primary goal of the

         10  Chancellor's Children First agenda.  To that end, we

         11  have moved aggressively to make improvements in

         12  special ed. During the past three years.

         13                 Integral to the efforts, the

         14  Department has created a unified and efficient

         15  service delivery system that serves both disabled

         16  and non- disabled students.  Leaders across the

         17  system no longer view special education as a

         18  separate system or place to send students, but

         19  rather as a set of services along a continuum of

         20  interventions specifically targeted to student

         21  needs.

         22                 The principal must now ensure that

         23  there are flexible interventions during the school

         24  day and during the extended school day, so that all

         25  students receive quality differentiated instruction.
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          2    I have to say a little, as I intersperse here, I,

          3  I'm entering my 33rd year with the Department of

          4  Education.  I started as  -- don't let my young

          5  looks fool you  -- I started as a speech teacher 33

          6  years ago and it is so refreshing for me to visit a

          7  school and to see both general ed. And special ed.

          8  Teachers collaborating on the best way to serve

          9  students to attending professional development

         10  together and not hear these things that I used to

         11  hear, is that take care of your kids on the third

         12  floor.

         13                 We are first seeing that now, all

         14  really does mean all, and with principals being

         15  accountable for all students in their school,

         16  there's a general view of, how do we all work

         17  together to serve the needs of the children in our

         18  building.

         19                 While DOE has much work to do,

         20  initial results indicate that this approach is

         21  working and holds great promise for the future.  In

         22  2004/2005, the last scores available, students with

         23  disabilities achieved their highest gains in math

         24  and English language arts since standards based

         25  testing began in 1999.
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          2                 In September, 2005, the DOE received

          3  the results of an independent comprehensive

          4  management report conducted by Thomas Hehir.  The

          5  Hehir Report found that special ed. Reform is headed

          6  in the right direction with a renewed emphasis on

          7  instruction and access to the general education

          8  curriculum for students with disabilities.  The

          9  report made recommendations for action.  DOE has

         10  acted upon them and I would like go through what we

         11  have done since the release of the Hehir Report, to

         12  give you an update.

         13                 The Department has increased a number

         14  of students at all grade levels that are now

         15  spending the majority of their day in inclusive

         16  settings, meaning that children are spending the

         17  majority of the day in general ed. Classes, with the

         18  appropriate special ed. Supports.  52.2 percent of

         19  our children, more than half, are now in inclusive

         20  settings.  This is an historic high for the

         21  Department of Education.

         22                 At the same time, school age students

         23  with disabilities in segregated settings, where

         24  they're spending the majority of their day in self-

         25  contained special ed. Classes, has reduced to 47.9
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          2  percent, a decrease of 570 students, an historic

          3  low.

          4                 Very important, one of the major,

          5  major findings of the Hehir Report is if we were

          6  truly to improve the outcomes for students with

          7  disabilities, we needed to make sure that they had

          8  opportunities to be, access a rigorous general ed.

          9  Curriculum and one of the recommendations was that

         10  the DOE should move to continue to increase

         11  inclusive education, which we have done.

         12                 In order to increase the involvement

         13  of students with disabilities with their non-

         14  disabled peers and provide increased access by

         15  students with disabilities to the general ed.

         16  Curriculum, the Department has doubled the number of

         17  students in collaborative team teaching classes

         18  since the spring of 2003.  By June, 2006, 17,999

         19  students with disabilities participated in

         20  collaborative team teaching classes.  The DOE opened

         21  360 additional collaborative team teaching classes

         22  for this coming school year alone.

         23                 This is an instructional model that

         24  employs the services of a general and a special ed.

         25  Teacher and a class comprised of both general ed.
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          2  And special ed. Students in a research, resource

          3  rich environment.  I said I was a former speech

          4  teacher, notice how well that's working.

          5                 To ensure high quality instruction,

          6  we also wanted to make sure that we provided

          7  professional development for teachers and we have

          8  used Marilyn, Dr. Marilyn Friend, who is considered

          9  a national expert on team teaching, and it's called

         10  The Power of Two, how two teachers working together

         11  can really meet the needs of the diverse group of

         12  students in the classroom. So, we have more than

         13  doubled team teaching.  In the last two years, we

         14  have opened over 400 last year, 300 hundred, 760

         15  collaborative team teaching classes.

         16                 Literacy gaps are a primary reason

         17  why students struggle and are referred to special

         18  ed., especially in the early grades.  The Department

         19  has continued to expand the Wilson Reading Program,

         20  which is a research- validated Orton- Gillingham

         21  based reading approach.  Really, the Orton-

         22  Gillingham method is really a method that was

         23  developed many years ago to work with dyslexic

         24  students.  What they found is that regardless of

         25  whether you were dyslexic or not dyslexic and if you
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          2  had real reading problems, then the Orton-

          3  Gillingham based approach to reading would help the

          4  children.

          5                 During the summer, DOE trained an

          6  additional 700 teachers in preparation for the new

          7  school year, bringing the City- wide total of

          8  teachers trained to over 3,700.  Just so you know,

          9  this far exceeds our target.  We had targeted

         10  training 500 teachers each year and we have, by far,

         11  exceeded that.

         12                 In addition, our, you know, talking

         13  to both parents and teachers, everybody has said

         14  that this program has been so successful in reaching

         15  children who had not found success before.

         16                 In order to provide adequate supports

         17  for students with disabilities to function in

         18  inclusive settings, it is imperative that teachers

         19  have the skills and tools to handle diverse learners

         20  in the classroom.  For this reason, the Department

         21  has engaged Schools Attuned, another nationally

         22  acclaimed research- based differentiated learning

         23  program, which has been implemented in our schools.

         24                 Recently, we worked with the founders

         25  and developers of Schools Attuned to roll out a
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          2  curriculum specifically for content area, teachers

          3  at the secondary level, and we've had high school,

          4  many high school teachers and principals have

          5  actually attended the training.

          6                 What one principal wrote to me in an

          7  e- mail was, after being a principal for 37 years,

          8  this was the best professional development that she

          9  had ever attended and is going to make sure that

         10  every one of her teachers gets this, because it

         11  really helped you see how you can focus a content

         12  area lesson for diverse learners in the classroom.

         13                 We trained an additional 350 teachers

         14  during the summer in preparation for the new school

         15  year, bringing the total number of teachers trained

         16  to 22,225, again, exceeding our target of 500

         17  teachers a year.

         18                 In line with the Hehir Report

         19  recommendations for upgrading special ed. Data

         20  systems, DOE has significantly upgraded its data

         21  management systems, making available on- line

         22  reports for regional and school level personnel on

         23  delivery of special ed. Services.  One of the

         24  reasons  --  the Department has also implemented

         25  this year an Integrated Voice Response System and
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          2  let me just explain what that is.

          3                 One of the challenges is when you

          4  have students in over a thousand school buildings,

          5  some served by Department of Ed. Staff, some served

          6  by non- DOE staff, is capturing when providers have

          7  actually started service.  We wanted this

          8  information to be timely.  We didn't want them to

          9  submit paperwork that, weeks later, would be

         10  available.

         11                 The Integrated Voice Response System

         12  is a call- in system to a 800 number, similar when

         13  you call into a bank.  You enter your PIN number as

         14  a provider and then you either speak in or punch in

         15  the ID of all the students that you are serving, any

         16  child who have started services each day.

         17                 Then, overnight, that information is

         18  available on line for both the school principal, for

         19  regional staff and central staff.  So, you can

         20  actually see, in real time, when students have been

         21  receiving services.  That's important, not only to

         22  know which students are receiving services, but also

         23  to know which students have not received services,

         24  so that you can take that immediate action to find

         25  out what the causes are and how do you remediate
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          2  that.

          3                 In addition, in January of 2005, we

          4  developed an on- line placement system and we got a

          5  lot of feedback from the end users this year and

          6  over the summer we've actually upgraded the system

          7  to meet the needs of the users and we rolled out

          8  what we call a second version of the placement

          9  system.

         10                 What it actually does is, it

         11  provides, again, real time data for where are the

         12  available classes, whether it be collaborative team

         13  teaching or self- contained classes that students

         14  need that have available seats in them, what are the

         15  profiles of the students of that class, how far are

         16  they from a child's house.  Not, so that it can give

         17  staff the information they need.

         18                 A computer system will not place

         19  children.  We don't want to take away the human

         20  aspect of placement, but it will help identify for

         21  staff where, what programs are available, what

         22  schools they're available in, how far are they away

         23  from the child's house, giving that parent some

         24  ability to visit the site and make an informed

         25  consent about where they want their child placed.
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          2                 So, so this is, these pieces, we have

          3  actually developed in- house, as part of our ongoing

          4  enhancement of our on line web- based special ed.

          5  System.  But, we also know that there were other

          6  pieces of the system that were much more detailed,

          7  such as an on- line Individualized Education Program

          8  as the core of our system and also a document

          9  management on- line system, so that we could have

         10  the records on every child available on- line and

         11  the core of the system could be an IEP, so that you

         12  could have everything done electronically.

         13                 What we did, we tried to avoid the

         14  mistakes that other large schools systems have done,

         15  which is they've jumped into building a system,

         16  spent significant dollars on this system, only to

         17  find out that the system is unfinished or didn't

         18  meet the needs of the people that were actually

         19  using the system.

         20                 So, to avoid those mistakes, what we

         21  did is we awarded a contract to IBM Global Services,

         22  based on a competitive bidding process, to actually

         23  develop a business technology plan. What that

         24  entails is, IBM Global held a large number of focus

         25  group meetings with both internal staff,
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          2  administrators, teachers, providers, psychologists,

          3  other departments, transportation, food services

          4  within the department, as well as external partners,

          5  such as parents and advocacy groups, to really find

          6  out what is, what is the information that people

          7  want the system to have, what is, what is the manner

          8  in which they want that information displayed, so

          9  that they could really come up with what the

         10  specifications of the system would look like.

         11                 Then, what we did, based on this

         12  information, is we recently released what we call a

         13  request for information and that is our request for

         14  information went out to hundred, hundreds of

         15  vendors, basically saying come back and tell the

         16  Department of Ed. What capability you have to meet

         17  any of these specifications. Because, what we need

         18  to do, based on this request for information, is

         19  make a decision whether there is an, what we call an

         20  off the shelf product that may be available to do a

         21  lot of the things we need them to do with some

         22  customization.  Or, is there no vendor out there

         23  that can meet the needs that, what we have for a

         24  data system, and it has to be built in- house.

         25                 So, before you move forward, you want
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          2  to have this business technology plan.  We just

          3  received about two weeks ago the responses for this

          4  request for information.  We're in the process of

          5  evaluating the responses, so that we can make the

          6  next available, the next decision whether we will

          7  outsource and do an RFP to finish up these two main

          8  pieces of the data system.

          9                 Consistent with the re- authorized

         10  federal legislation, New York City has made

         11  considerable improvement in the area of evaluation

         12  and placement.  These efforts center on the

         13  realization that assessment should facilitate

         14  instruction, the personnel at the child's school who

         15  know the child are now evaluating and making

         16  decisions for the child, along with the parent.

         17  These school- based personnel are much more likely

         18  to make appropriate decisions for the child, rather

         19  than central office personnel who never met the

         20  child by, and unlikely to provide services for the

         21  child.

         22                 We are delighted that the number of

         23  evaluations completed with an eligibility

         24  determination during the last school year increased

         25  by 5,033, compared to pre- reform levels, despite
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          2  returning over 1,000 special ed. Teachers, formerly

          3  known as ed. Evaluators, to instructional positions

          4  in schools, where they are contributing directly to

          5  our instructional improvements.

          6                 I think there's an important fact

          7  here.  We are actually, and this is to great credit

          8  of all of our staff, we are actually having higher

          9  productivity with more evaluations completed than we

         10  did prior to the reorganization.  At the same time,

         11  it allowed us to give an extra special ed. Teacher

         12  to over, to approximately 960 schools.  These

         13  special ed. Teachers can, are, are attending IEP

         14  meetings to provide important input and also are

         15  providing direct instruction to both struggling

         16  students and students with disabilities.

         17                 As part of this special ed. Reform,

         18  we created a comprehensive Monitoring in School

         19  Improvement process, reporting directly to my

         20  office.  We are extremely concerned, as the Council

         21  Members are, about individual issues that parents

         22  raise. We encourage parents to call us with their

         23  concerns and we move to expedite and resolve their

         24  concerns in a very quick fashion. By establishing

         25  the office of Monitoring in School Improvement, it

                                                            27

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  has actually helped us to be responsive to parent

          3  concerns.

          4                 In addition, these school improvement

          5  teams have ongoing consultation in schools, in order

          6  to help them build capacity to serve students with

          7  disabilities better.  Their mission is around four

          8  core, four core areas, to improve academic

          9  achievement of students with disabilities, access of

         10  student disabilities with the general ed.

         11  Curriculum, the development of intervention and

         12  prevention programs and parent satisfaction.

         13                 They work with hundreds of schools

         14  very successfully and I know because, each year,

         15  principals call them again and say, can you come

         16  back in, we need a little more help with something.

         17  So, it's really working with people to really build

         18  their capacity to be able to serve children in a

         19  more appropriate fashion.

         20                 In recognition of the fact that

         21  parents are important partners in the education of

         22  their children, we have developed an ongoing special

         23  ed. Parent/Advocates Advisory Committee that meets

         24  regularly with the Deputy Chancellor of Teaching and

         25  Learning and I, to discuss critical issues of
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          2  importance to parents.

          3                 This group has made, has been

          4  instrumental in providing feedback to us and making

          5  recommendations.  Just as an example of one of the

          6  recommendations they made, one of the issues has

          7  always been, how do you ease the transition for

          8  preschoolers with disabilities into the school

          9  system, because school age services can be so

         10  different sometimes than preschool?

         11                 One of the recommendations, which we

         12  have implemented, was holding orientation fairs in

         13  the all of the regions for parents of children who

         14  will be entering kindergarten for the first time.

         15  These fairs have been attended by over 4,000

         16  parents, very successful.  We did an evaluation of

         17  the fairs last year.  The feedback from parents were

         18  they, they were absolutely effective and helpful.

         19                 We also provided tours for parents of

         20  students of preschoolers to come to visit schools to

         21  see what school service, school age services look

         22  like.  Because, of the things is, you go to an IEP

         23  meeting and somebody talks to you about a

         24  collaborative team teaching class and if you've

         25  never seen one, it's hard for you to make a decision
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          2  if this is the right class for my child. So, it also

          3  allows parents to visit and make an informed

          4  decision.

          5                 We also, the Department has acted on

          6  these, in recognition of the importance role in

          7  special education, we've convened a similar group of

          8  principals to get their recommendation,

          9  recommendations as well.

         10                 I think, something that Advocate

         11  Gotbaum says, every year we have doing, been doing

         12  active recruitment for something called Parent

         13  Members of the CSE.  We, again, will be sending out

         14  brochures to the community to actively recruit

         15  parents of children with disabilities.

         16                 The law just changed, it actually,

         17  because it was so difficult across New York State to

         18  get parent members, remember they cannot be

         19  employees of the Department of Education, they're

         20  volunteers, they were able to pay a stipend for

         21  travel and babysitting, what the state did is, they

         22  actually expanded and said that if you have a child

         23  who is decertified or graduated in the last five

         24  years, you can now also serve as a parent member.

         25  So, we've updated our information, be sending that
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          2  out to the community and we have already scheduled

          3  training for parent members.

          4                 Providing all children, disabled and

          5  non- disabled alike, with a quality education is the

          6  core value that underlies all of our special ed.

          7  Reforms.  We still have a ways to go, but we have

          8  forged some very significant successes in critical

          9  special ed. Areas.  Thank you.

         10                 MR. BEST:  If I might, Chairman

         11  Jackson, I've got a brief statement on the actual

         12  legislation that the Committee is considering.  I

         13  want to  --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Sure, just,

         15  before you begin, let me just recognize my

         16  colleague, Lew Fidler of Brooklyn that's sitting in

         17  front.  Let me just say to the  --  oh, Andrew,

         18  Andrew, I don't have eyes in the back of my head,

         19  but now I can see you, my colleague Andrew Lanza of

         20  Staten Island.  I was getting ready to say State

         21  Senator, but I'm not going to say that.  I'm just

         22  going to say my colleague Andrew Lanza of Staten

         23  Island, welcome.

         24                 Let me just thank you for your

         25  testimony.  I appreciate it.  Now we're going to
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          2  hear from Michael Best, General Counsel of the

          3  Department of Education.

          4                 MR. BEST:  Thank you Chairman Jackson

          5  and Public Advocate Gotbaum and Members of the

          6  Committee, good morning to you.  As the Chairman

          7  said, my name is Michael Best.  I am the General

          8  Counsel of the Department of Education and I am here

          9  to comment briefly on Intro, Number 344, which

         10  relates to the recording of data about special

         11  education.

         12                 Congress revised the Individuals with

         13  Disabilities Education Act or IDEA in 2004.  IDEA

         14  2004 became effective on July 1, 2005 and the United

         15  States Department of Education has recently

         16  promulgation regulations under IDEA 2004 that become

         17  effective on October 13th of this year.

         18                 Pursuant to the statute and

         19  regulations, states are designated as the regulator

         20  of local school districts under the IDEA and states

         21  are required to set goals for the performance of

         22  students with disabilities and annually report to

         23  the USDOE and to the public on the state's progress

         24  and on the progress of children with disabilities in

         25  the state.
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          2                 The statute and regulations also make

          3  clear that states should only promulgate rules that

          4  conform to the purposes of the IDEA and, in fact,

          5  should minimize the number of rules, regulations and

          6  policies to which a state subjects local school

          7  districts and schools.  Thus, in IDEA 2004, Congress

          8  made clear that states should enhance oversight by

          9  requiring more reporting, but also make clear that

         10  additional requirements beyond those imposed by

         11  federal law were not permissible, because they are

         12  unduly burdensome.

         13                 Pursuant to the federal requirements,

         14  the New York State Education Department has issued a

         15  performance plan that will result in extensive

         16  public reporting of special education data for

         17  schools throughout New York State, including those

         18  in New York City.

         19                 We have provided a copy of the

         20  performance plan to the Members of the Committee.

         21  It is 123 pages long and it requires us to provide

         22  data annually on a host of areas related to special

         23  ed.  Thus, DOE will be reporting to the state and

         24  the state will report to the federal government and

         25  the public, data about the following subjects for
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          2  special education students in New York City:

          3  Graduation rates; dropout rates; assessment rates;

          4  suspension rates; expulsion rates; least restrictive

          5  environment percentages for both school age and

          6  preschool; preschool outcomes; parental involvement

          7  rates; disproportionality rates; child find data;

          8  early transition data; secondary transition data;

          9  post- school outcomes; identification and correction

         10  of non compliance; complaint time lines; due process

         11  time lines; hearing requests resolved by resolution

         12  session; and mediation agreements.

         13                 Each of these indicators, it should

         14  be noted, contains several sub- categories of

         15  specific data that we must report.  For instance, in

         16  reporting on child finds, the state will require us

         17  to report the number of children for whom parental

         18  consent to evaluate was received, the number of

         19  children determined not eligible whose evaluations

         20  and eligibility determinations were completed within

         21  60 days and the number of children determined

         22  eligible whose evaluations and eligibility

         23  determinations were completed within 60 days.

         24                 For another example, under the least

         25  restrictive environment indicator, we must report
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          2  the percentage of students ages six to 21 with IEPs

          3  who were removed from a regular class less than 21

          4  percent of the day, the percentage of students ages

          5  six to 21 with IEPs removed from class more than 60

          6  percent of the day and the percentage of students

          7  ages six to 21 with IEPs serviced in public or

          8  private schools, residential placements or home

          9  bound or hospital placements.

         10                 This detailed mandatory reporting

         11  will provide the state and federal government and

         12  the public enormous amounts of information about the

         13  performance of the Department of Education, our

         14  schools and our students with disabilities.  But,

         15  this is not the only public reporting on special

         16  education by the City Department of Education.  Each

         17  year, in the Mayor's Management Report, the

         18  Department of Education reports on special education

         19  enrollment, less restrictive environment, special

         20  education teacher support, team teaching, more

         21  restrictive environment, non- public school

         22  programs, total assessment work load and completed

         23  cases, as well as initial referrals, re- evaluations

         24  and three year reviews completed within 30 days.

         25                 The Department believes that it is

                                                            35

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  important to make information about special

          3  education available to the public and we publicly

          4  report substantial data about special education. We

          5  are concerned, however, that Intro. 344 is

          6  unnecessary and duplicative and that it will divert

          7  resources away from serving children.

          8                 Congress has mandated that the state

          9  obtain data and report on special education in New

         10  York City and the state has established a thorough

         11  system for public reporting of that data.

         12  Therefore, it may be that the data reporting on

         13  special education contemplated by Intro. 344 is, as

         14  a legal matter, not a permissible area for local

         15  legislation.

         16                 Congress and the United States

         17  Department of Education have also made clear that

         18  requirements beyond those of federal law should not

         19  be imposed on local school districts, which should

         20  be focusing on delivering services to children. This

         21  legislation then would controvert the intent of the

         22  IDEA by imposing an additional reporting requirement

         23  on the DOE and it would do so, we believe,

         24  unnecessarily.

         25                 Between the indicators reported in
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          2  the MMR and the state's mandated reporting

          3  structure, the DOE will be publicly reporting on a

          4  myriad of information on special education students

          5  and services.

          6                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          7  testify.  Ms. Wernikoff and I will be happy to

          8  answer any questions the Committee may have.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you Mr.

         10  Best.  We appreciate you coming in and giving us,

         11  you know, as a Counsel for the Department of

         12  Education, your opinions about, you know, whether or

         13  not this proposed legislation would be legal.  So,

         14  we respect your opinion and we will take it under

         15  advisement and consideration in moving forward.

         16                 Let me just, before we begin the

         17  questioning, my colleague, Al Vann, had joined us

         18  and he just stepped out.  I and several other of my

         19  colleagues will have to step next door to vote on

         20  zoning.  But, we're going to request that our Public

         21  Advocate start questions that she has of the two of

         22  you.  Is that okay?  And I will be returning

         23  momentarily.  Thank you.  Public Advocate Betsy

         24  Gotbaum.

         25                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:  I think as
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          2  many of you know, Mr. Best, I don't whether you

          3  know, it's very hard to get me angry.  But, the

          4  implication that we are not concerned with or I was

          5  not concerned with delivering services to children

          6  is quite the opposite of what happened, when the

          7  psychologists in the school approached us and caused

          8  us to do a survey, that the children were not

          9  getting the services that they required under the

         10  reforms, the great reforms that the Department of

         11  Education said that we didn't know what we were

         12  talking about.

         13                 Now, the implication of what you said

         14  is exactly why we felt that the IDEA mandated

         15  reporting was not sufficient for New York City,

         16  which is why we have introduced this legislation.  I

         17  think it's a little bit condescending to imply that

         18  we have to always obey the federal law.  Excuse me,

         19  I believe that what our children were not getting

         20  were the kind of services that they deserve, which

         21  is exactly why we have done this.  So, it's hard for

         22  me to be so angry, but I really am angry.

         23                 MR. BEST:  I would simply say that I

         24  didn't intend to imply anything about improper

         25  motivations by anyone.  I think the Committee and
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          2  the Department share a desire to make sure that all

          3  special education students and all general education

          4  students will frankly get the education and the

          5  services they deserve.

          6                 I think that there is room for

          7  disagreement about the best remedy, the best ways to

          8  do that and that's natural.  I think that I do have

          9  some legal concerns about the bill and we also have

         10  operational concerns about the bill, which I've

         11  tried to express.  But, it was not meant, in any

         12  way, to impugn your, the, your intent to sponsor,

         13  Madam Public Advocate, it's simply an expression of

         14  the Department's position about, about the best way

         15  to comport with the federal law and I think some

         16  serious legal concerns that we have about whether

         17  it's, as a simply as a structural preemption matter

         18  under the law, a permissible bill. That's really all

         19  I was trying to express.

         20                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:  Do you have

         21  any suggestions as to how we could get the kind of

         22  information that, under your system, the kind of

         23  information that we got from the psychologists then?

         24    How could we get that, other than the way that we

         25  did?
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          2                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  I'm going to take

          3  this.

          4                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:  Okay.

          5                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  First of all, you

          6  know, I do appreciate the surveys and to the best of

          7  my recollection, that survey was done more than two

          8  and a half years ago.  So, I think that, you know, I

          9  would like to rely on some hard data, rather than

         10  anecdotal information that was collected a while ago

         11  and one of the things  --

         12                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:  But it

         13  wasn't anecdotal, we actually, we surveyed all of

         14  the psychologists and we got responses and that's,

         15  that data that I, 74 percent and the 75 percent  --

         16                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  Right.

         17                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:  --  Is

         18  actually accurate data.

         19                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  Okay.

         20                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:  It may be

         21  two years old, but it's still data and otherwise we

         22  wouldn't have gotten it.

         23                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  Okay and what I would

         24  say is that if you look at in the most recent

         25  Mayor's Management Report, just to go through it, it
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          2  shows the number of students who are receiving

          3  special ed. Services and we've even disaggregated

          4  further this year to break down those children who

          5  are getting it in public schools, parochial schools,

          6  private schools, charter schools, so that everybody

          7  sees where, where are these 180,000 students who are

          8  getting special ed. Services.

          9                 Then, if you go further, it lays out

         10  for you what are the kinds of services, related

         11  services, team teaching, special classes.  Then, it

         12  actually has, and it gives you two years of data, so

         13  you can do comparative data.  It shows you the total

         14  assessment work load, as you have asked for, initial

         15  referrals, mandated, re- evaluation, mandated

         16  reviews, how many cases we're still in the process,

         17  not completed at the end of June, the number of

         18  cases that were completed, the percent of the cases

         19  they completed, the percent that were done within 30

         20  days, how many students moved through the continuum

         21  to less restrictive, more restrictive, how many

         22  students were decertified.

         23                 This information is available

         24  already.  I think if you look at this 123 pages that

         25  the state has now put out, which is part of the
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          2  state performance plan, it actually goes even

          3  deeper.  So, for example, one of the issues which I

          4  think you expressed concern about is how many

          5  students are evaluated within that 60 days.  The

          6  state requires us now to actually give data on that,

          7  but goes further and says any students weren't

          8  evaluated within those 60 days, give us the reasons

          9  why.

         10                 So, I would just ask that if you look

         11  at the 123 pages of state reporting, which is brand

         12  new, that we've never done before, which is new in

         13  the IDEA, you may find that between that and the

         14  Mayor's Management Report, that you have the

         15  sufficient data that you need.

         16                 Quite frankly, what the state has

         17  even said, given the onerous amount of reporting,

         18  that most school districts will not have to do it on

         19  a yearly basis, but will only be sampled every few

         20  years, except New York City.  New York City will be

         21  providing that data on a yearly basis.

         22                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:  Except,

         23  Linda, it is not done by district or by region, and

         24  I think that parents who live in this enormous City

         25  and live in certain parts of the City may want to

                                                            42

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  know exactly, in their area, what's going on and

          3  that's why we are being so insistent about it.

          4                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  Okay.

          5                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:  I have

          6  another question, unless any of my colleagues want

          7  to go first.  Go ahead Jimmy.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  Thank you

          9  Madam Public Advocate.  I do have several concerns

         10  and I know that much of the statistics or many of

         11  the statistics you issue are driven by the State of

         12  New York, mandates of the state.  We, the City

         13  Council have issues too.  I have to say as an aside,

         14  if we're depending on the State of New York and we

         15  put all of our trust in the State of New York, I, as

         16  a parent, am still waiting for reading and math

         17  scores that my daughter never received from last

         18  year.  I have a responsibility and where others have

         19  fallen, I think it's incumbent upon us to pick up.

         20                 We first have to acknowledge that

         21  there were major transitional issues between, in the

         22  time period when we went from a Board of Education

         23  to a Department of Education.  Those transitional

         24  issues in special ed. Were documented and special

         25  ed. Supervisors were eliminated.  There was a total
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          2  transition, things changed.

          3                 We now have to ask ourselves, and I

          4  think this legislation is asking that question, when

          5  things changed, how can we, as a Council, get a

          6  handle as an evaluative tool, so that we can report

          7  to our constituents?  Certainly, in my mind, if this

          8  just means more paper, I would say we have enough

          9  paper.

         10                 My first question is this, are

         11  placements and referrals up or down during the past

         12  year?  I ask that question because some people get

         13  alarmed when placements are down and some people get

         14  alarmed when placements are up.  I want to know, are

         15  placements are down or up during the last year and

         16  why?

         17                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  Placements are,

         18  placement is a broad question.  Let me say, as far

         19  as initial referrals to special ed., between last

         20  year and this year, there was a reduction in initial

         21  referrals of approximately 1,800 students.

         22                 As far as placements, I call that

         23  eligibility determinations, how many children who

         24  were newly referred to special ed. Had a meeting

         25  with an eligibility determination, they're up.  We
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          2  did 5,000, we did, between last year and this year,

          3  I think they're up about 2,000, so that the number

          4  of eligibility determinations is actually increased.

          5                 As far as children placed, you will

          6  see the numbers of children receiving team teaching

          7  and other services they're recommended for has

          8  increased.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  Is that number

         10  up dramatically more in the high schools than

         11  anywhere else?  Is that where we're seeing a bump in

         12  the number of special education children?

         13                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  No.  Actually, I

         14  think if you look at the referral rate, referral

         15  rates tend to always be at the early grades.  What

         16  we're seeing is with all the interventions, that

         17  there has been a reduction because the idea is that

         18  we want to provide early intervention, so that it's

         19  not a way to fail the model, where you don't want to

         20  wait for a child to fail before you intervene with

         21  services, so that we're seeing that reduction,

         22  basically at the elementary school level, where the

         23  most initial referrals come from.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  Is there a cap

         25  on the number of children in a school that have

                                                            45

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  IEPs?  Do you have a cap on how many students in a

          3  school should be regular ed. Versus special ed.?

          4                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  I wouldn't, there's

          5  not a cap, but what we look for is equity of

          6  distribution.  So, if you would say that, you know,

          7  what is the percentage of students with disabilities

          8  that you would find, and if it's 12 percent or 13

          9  percent, you look to say, let's make sure that when

         10  we, when we place students with disabilities, that

         11  we're being equitable and looking at how, what

         12  percentage of students schools particularly have

         13  now.

         14                 I think the other thing that's

         15  important is, federal law basically says that

         16  children with disabilities should be going to the

         17  school they would attend if not disabled and get

         18  those unique services they need.  That's something

         19  we've been working very aggressively on, is keeping

         20  children in their home zone schools and providing

         21  the services and bringing them into those schools.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  When you

         23  allude to caps, I use the word capping, my point was

         24  that we at the Council previously discussed a

         25  possible unfair distribution in so much as large
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          2  high schools and small high schools are concerned.

          3  We have large high schools in my borough with 20

          4  percent and upward children with IEPs or in special

          5  ed., and we have small high schools with a class

          6  here and a class there, or students here or students

          7  there.

          8                 What is being done to equalize

          9  distribution at the high school level, so that the

         10  large high schools that remain, that have not been

         11  split up, do not have a disproportionate population?

         12                 MR. BEST:  Well, I, Councilman Vacca,

         13  I'd simply say this, we have a strategy in regard to

         14  new small high schools that we've been creating in

         15  the last few years to try to make sure that we can

         16  get better outcomes for our special education

         17  students than we've had in the past.  It's part of

         18  the overall special education strategy.

         19                 The, every, every new small high

         20  school that opens takes special education students.

         21  Some of them provide some services, some of them

         22  don't provide other services their first year or

         23  two.  They then all ramp up to provide the full

         24  continuum of services by their third or fourth year.

         25                 If you look at the small, the high
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          2  school, the smaller high schools that have been

          3  opened up, that have been opened three or four years

          4  now, they are, they are taking students in, in, to,

          5  that have the full range of special education

          6  services.

          7                 So, as we create more and more of

          8  these schools and as they ramp up to be able to

          9  provide services in the right way, and I point out

         10  as well that we're seeing better outcomes, better

         11  attendance, better promotion rates for special

         12  education students in those small high schools, they

         13  are, that, as time goes on and we create more and

         14  more of these schools and they develop their

         15  capacities more, you're going to have more and more

         16  special education students in there.

         17                 So, at the end of the day, I think

         18  that that addresses your concern about how do we

         19  equalize, if you will, making sure that the, that

         20  all the schools are serving special ed. Students

         21  fairly.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  I want to

         23  know, for the record, that, to date, that has not

         24  been done.  To date, we have high schools in the

         25  Bronx, where 20 percent of the children there, in
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          2  high schools with 5,000 plus children, have IEPS and

          3  small high schools have one or two classes.  This is

          4  an unfair distribution and it continues to this day.

          5                 My last question to you is regarding

          6  District 75 children, children placed in District

          7  75.  Has there been an increased attempt to have

          8  children in District 75 programs attend regular ed.

          9  Situations in the various schools?

         10                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  I would say that the

         11  opportunities for inclusive education are across the

         12  continuum.  So, yes, District 75 has increased the

         13  numbers of students in inclusive settings.  I think

         14  approximately 2,000 students are served by District

         15  75 in inclusive settings with support from District

         16  75. Again, that's an individual determination based

         17  on the needs of the child that determine an IEP

         18  meeting with the parent.

         19                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:  Council

         20  Member Liu.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Thank you Madam

         22  Chair, I would like to thank you for bringing this

         23  issue up and also thank Chairman Jackson for holding

         24  this Hearing and thank the officials from the

         25  Department of Education.
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          2                 Let me just, a brief comment.  I also

          3  do find it inappropriate for you, Mr. Best, to imply

          4  that we shouldn't be asking for information so that

          5  you can better educate the kids, when, in fact, it

          6  is because of the complaints that we find it

          7  necessary to ask the Department for this kind of

          8  information. So, I would ask you to, you did not

          9  simply talk about possibly federal and/or state law

         10  preempting us from this legislation, you also did

         11  strongly imply that we were, perhaps, asking for

         12  information that was not necessary.  That's just not

         13  appropriate and necessary for you to bring up in

         14  this kind of Hearing.

         15                 MR. BEST:  I don't believe that's

         16  what my statement was, but I'll just say this,

         17  Councilman, first off, I think questions of whether

         18  legislation, at any level or preempted are serious

         19  legal issues and I felt obliged to raise it with the

         20  Committee as it considers this legislation.

         21                 Secondly, I would say that as an

         22  operational matter, I believe legislators and the

         23  executive when considering bills both have to take

         24  seriously the, and I know the Committee does, but I

         25  think we, and that's why I raise it, I think
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          2  legislators and the executive need to take seriously

          3    --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Why don't we

          5  stop right there, Mr. Best.  I think it's fine for

          6  you to talk about preemption issues, but don't sit

          7  there and tell us that you, all you, your response

          8  to the Public Advocate was that you simply focused

          9  on the preemption issues and did not imply, in any

         10  way, that we were asking for information that you

         11  felt unnecessary to be asked for.

         12                 MR. BEST:  I don't, I, well, if

         13  that's, I don't believe that's what I said

         14  Councilman, but  --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Okay, then why

         16  don't we  --

         17                 MR. BEST:  --  If I may be  --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  --  Leave it at

         19  that?

         20                 MR. BEST:  Well, if I may be clear

         21   --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Why don't we

         23  leave it at that Mr. Best?

         24                 MR. BEST:  --  That my statement

         25  said, Councilman, in my statement, I said that I
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          2  believe, that we believe that the bill is, we are

          3  concerned that the bill  --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Every time that

          5  we ask  --

          6                 MR. BEST:  --  Is unnecessary  --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  --  For

          8  information from the Department, you think that it's

          9  not necessary because it takes away from your

         10  ability to educate our kids.  When, in fact, the

         11  very reason we ask for that information is because

         12  we don't think, or we think that you can do an even

         13  better job.  So, we're trying to make this thing a

         14  cooperative effort, so that we can all be more

         15  comfortable that our kids in this City are getting a

         16  better, the best education possible.

         17                 Don't second- guess us when we ask

         18  you for information.  If you think that there's a

         19  preemption issue, by all means, we certainly need to

         20  hear that from you.  But, don't sit there and tell

         21  us that you think we're asking for information that

         22  is unnecessary and then turn around and say that you

         23  actually didn't ask us for it.  It's disingenuous,

         24  Mr. Best, and we'd appreciate that you not do it any

         25  more.
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          2                 Let me get to my questions here.  Ms.

          3  Wernikoff, thank you very much for your time.  I

          4  thought your testimony was very comprehensive.  I do

          5  want to ask you about your statements concerning, I

          6  guess, the improved evaluation and assessment

          7  process.  When you say that the eligibility

          8  determinations increased by 5,033 compared to the

          9  pre- reform levels, are you talking about, you know,

         10  not counting the outcome, but just the fact that

         11  they were completed?  Or, are you actually saying

         12  that there are 5,000 some odd more determinations

         13  that students were eligible for special education?

         14                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  It's actually 5,033

         15  more evaluations that were completed.  The

         16  eligibility determination may be non- disabled.

         17  That's up to the team.  But, I think one of the

         18  issues were, are you completing these evaluations

         19  and making decisions, regardless if that decision

         20  may be, yes, you need special ed., or no, this child

         21  does not require special ed. Services.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Okay.  So, now,

         23  how would you say that the evaluation process itself

         24  has been improved, as opposed to the number of

         25  evaluations that have been completed? Is it pretty
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          2  much the same evaluation procedure, you just have

          3  been able to make it more efficient and get through

          4  more evaluations?

          5                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  I think that, I think

          6  how we've improved it, is that prior to the

          7  reorganization, you had a meeting at the school

          8  level and then you had a second meeting at the

          9  district office, because we didn't actually allow

         10  schools to finalize decisions.  What we heard from

         11  parents and many teachers during our focus groups

         12  was, we know the kids best, why is there a second

         13  meeting at the district office with people who don't

         14  even know my child and sometimes overturning

         15  decisions that we have made and lengthening the

         16  process?

         17                 So, what we basically did is say, you

         18  know what, you're right.  We're going to have teams

         19  at the school who know the kids best, finalize those

         20  decisions, you don't have to come to a second review

         21  anymore.  So, it shortened the process and had the

         22  right people at the meetings.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Okay.  But,

         24  then, of course, I mean, I assume that there were

         25  measures enacted to ensure that there would be
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          2  consistency and uniformity in the way students were

          3  evaluated and assessed.

          4                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  Absolutely.  One of

          5  the things that we did when we first made the change

          6  is we had a large number of professional development

          7  days for school psychologists on what are the key

          8  factors we should be looking at and what are, we've

          9  had for a long time what we call, you know, there is

         10  professional discretion about what formalized or

         11  informal assessments you're going to provide, but,

         12  really, basically what are you looking at.  You're

         13  looking at instructional areas, reading, writing,

         14  mathematics.

         15                 I think the other thing that really

         16  improved is that one of the things that the law is

         17  very direct about is that the child's own teacher

         18  must be at these meetings.  By holding them at the

         19  school level and having this additional teacher that

         20  is now at the school, that teacher can provide

         21  coverage to allow the child's own teacher to come to

         22  the meeting and have input and really tell me how is

         23  Linda really doing in the classroom? You're telling

         24  me that Linda has these issues, let me tell you how

         25  that affects the classroom performance, so that you
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          2  come up with an individual plan that really

          3  addresses my individual needs.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Okay.  Then, my

          5  last question has to do, you know the testimony,

          6  like I said, it's very good testimony, it's

          7  comprehensive.  It seems to, though, and maybe I'm

          8  wrong, it seems to kind of like imply or have a

          9  leaning towards evaluating more students to be  --

         10  I'm sorry, it seems to lean towards suggesting that

         11  the evaluation program is more successful when we

         12  are able, when we have determined that more students

         13  are eligible for special education and, therefore,

         14  we are providing it to them.

         15                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  Actually, what I

         16  just, what I was trying to address is that

         17  evaluations, the time lengths of evaluations has not

         18  changed.  The determinations are based on IEP

         19  teams and we share the same concern you do that we

         20  don't over refer children unnecessarily for special

         21  ed. Services.  That is why we have a large

         22  intervention program and when we do training in

         23  something like Wilson, we train general ed. Teachers

         24  as well, because there's no reason that you should

         25  have to be referred to special ed. To get a Wilson
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          2  program.  You should be able to get that in general

          3  ed. As well.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  So, do we get a

          5  lot of complaints from parents who feel that perhaps

          6  their child was inappropriately referred or assessed

          7  to be needing special education?

          8                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  I think that one of

          9  the things that the law requires is parental consent

         10  to evaluate their child and parental consent to

         11  placement.  So, if a parent disagrees that their,

         12  you know, says, look, I really don't think that my

         13  child needs special ed. Services, then they don't

         14  consent.  We still have an obligation to provide the

         15  appropriate intervention. So, every, there's parent

         16  consent along the way.  We cannot compel parents to

         17  take a placement in special ed. Without their

         18  consent.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  But, then,

         20  according to the professional judgment of the

         21  Department, that student would not be getting the

         22  appropriate education, even if it is because it's

         23  stopped by the parent.

         24                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  Well, let me say two

         25  things and not to get into the special ed. Law, but
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          2  it really, what, there are two different levels.  If

          3  we feel that a child really does need an evaluation,

          4  we can go to a hearing, an impartial hearing, and

          5  ask that a hearing officer order us to allow the

          6  child to be evaluated.  But, if we find that child

          7  needs special ed. Services, the law does not allow

          8  the Department to Education to take that parent to a

          9  hearing to compel them to place their child.

         10  However, we'll do have enough evaluative material to

         11  be able provide those modifications in general

         12  education, so we are supporting the child through

         13  the general education program.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  I'm sorry Mr.

         15  Chairman, one last question.  Aren't there cases

         16  where some parents, they feel like they can't say no

         17  to the Department's recommendation?

         18                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  I would say that we

         19  have a parents' right, you know, it's a parent right

         20  statement, actually we have it on our website in all

         21  the major languages.  One of the key issues, right

         22  in there, is you do not have to consent to services

         23  and it's in there all over.  This is one of the

         24  things that our school social workers, when they do

         25  an initial meeting with a parent whose initial
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          2  referral to special ed. Explains these consent

          3  regulations, so that parents can make informed

          4  decisions.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  So, I think if

          6  that is indeed taking place, then it would be a

          7  significant change from a few years ago, where there

          8  were complaints from parents that people, that

          9  students were being inappropriately placed for

         10  special education.  Thank you very much.  Thank you

         11  Mr. Chair.

         12                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  You're welcome.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you

         14  Council Member Liu.  Next we're going to hear from

         15  Council Member Jessica Lappin of Manhattan.

         16  Jessica.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN:  Thank you Mr.

         18  Chairman. Before I ask my question, I just wanted to

         19  share what is not anecdotal data, but what is the

         20  real stories that I hear from my constituents and

         21  not just from one.

         22                 I hear frequently that the Committee

         23  on Special Education doesn't return phone calls,

         24  that IEPs are completely ignored and, in fact, that

         25  a lawyer has to be hired to get them enforced.
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          2  You're going to hear later today from a constituent

          3  of mine who's here, who's a lawyer, his wife is a

          4  lawyer, and guess what? They had to hire a lawyer.

          5  I've heard from a constituent who got so fed up and

          6  frustrated and couldn't afford a lawyer that she is

          7  now home- schooling her child.

          8                 I don't understand why citizens of

          9  this City who pay their taxes and are good members

         10  of our society have to hire lawyers to get

         11  educational services for their children.

         12                 I want to ask specifically about

         13  transportation services, because this is what my

         14  staff seems to spend an awful lot of time helping

         15  constituents with.  I don't see that in Mr. Best's

         16  list of services that are to be reported on to the

         17  state. You're going to hear, again later, from

         18  Greenspan, who until the day before school started

         19  this year, the day before school started this year,

         20  did not have a transportation plan for his son.

         21                 I have a constituent on Roosevelt

         22  Island, Gloria Gonzalez, who, until I think two days

         23  before the start of school, did not have a

         24  transportation plan for her son.  So, I'd like to

         25  ask what the Department's plans are in terms of
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          2  keeping track, monitoring and reporting

          3  transportation services for special education

          4  students?

          5                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  Not being the head of

          6  Transportation, I will say that we have, if children

          7  are required under their IEP, some children need

          8  specialized transportation, we provide both door to

          9  door bussing for children who have disability-

         10  related issues, there are children who have special

         11  accommodations, such as a nurse on the bus, or air

         12  conditioning or a shortened bus run due to

         13  disability- related issues.

         14                 We have, every year, for continuing

         15  students, we have a huge reconciliation process

         16  between the schools and the Office of Pupil

         17  Transportation, giving them the information where

         18  children will be going to school the following year.

         19                 For new children coming in, we use

         20  our computer system to alert our Office of Pupil

         21  Transportation for all students who need bussing.

         22  Obviously, I'm not, you know, if there are

         23  individual issues, we will act on them immediately.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN:  I guess the

         25  thing is, is that every child is different and I
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          2  know that makes it more difficult and more complex,

          3  but you're always dealing with individual issues

          4  when you're talking about special education

          5  children.  So, I understand that that's the policy,

          6  I'm just telling you that it's not working.

          7                 People are calling our office,

          8  particularly this time of year, and we are spending

          9  hours on the phone trying to get them transportation

         10  for their children to get to school.  So, I'm

         11  telling you the policy isn't working, because every

         12  child is an individual case.

         13                 So, it's very frustrating and when I

         14  have a constituent who's sitting here today, who the

         15  day before school, after making, I mean it's not

         16  like he didn't try, you know, we have to, then,

         17  spend hours to make sure that his kid, and it still

         18  isn't an appropriate route for him to get to school.

         19    But, I just find that inexcusable.  I shouldn't

         20  have to be talking to parents who don't know how

         21  they're going to get their kids to school the next

         22  day.

         23                 Thank your Mr. Chairman.  We're going

         24  to begin the Landmarks, Public Siting and Maritime

         25  Uses Committee across the street for the Committee
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          2  Members who are here.  It's been moved to 250

          3  Broadway.  Thank you.

          4                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  Before you leave, I

          5  just wanted to add something.  We have just recently

          6  hired transportation liaisons for each of our

          7  committees on special ed. To really concentrate on

          8  the issues of initiating transportation and working

          9  with parents and schools.  So, that will be

         10  something that I think will address many of your

         11  concerns, if not all.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN:  Well, I hope

         13  so.  Again, I just want to point out, I didn't see

         14  it in Mr. Best's list.  So, I hope that it's

         15  something that the Department of Education will

         16  compile statistics on and that this Committee will

         17  have information from them on.

         18                 We're going to be at 250 Broadway on

         19  the 14th floor.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Before I begin,

         21  let me just say, introduce my other colleagues that

         22  are here, David Yassky in front of me from Brooklyn,

         23  next to David is Dan Garodnick of Manhattan, and to

         24  my right is Miguel Martinez of Manhattan.

         25                 Next, we're going to hear from
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          2  Council Member Lew Fidler of Brooklyn.  Let me just

          3  ask one quick question before him.  Ms. Wernikoff,

          4  you indicated that DOE recently hired transportation

          5  coordinators for special education services, I

          6  think, did you say one for each region?

          7                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  It's, I don't

          8  remember the exact number.  Some regions are sharing

          9  because of the number of kids. So, we're trying this

         10  out.  It's a new position and  --  on the top of my

         11  head I'm thinking seven, but we can get you that

         12  information.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  So, but, is

         14  that information, these transportation coordinators

         15  and what area they serve, is that on- line as of

         16  yet?

         17                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  They're being hired

         18  as we speak.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay, so when

         20  you, you know, if you have some in place already,

         21  can you just send it to us and then if you can

         22  update that? Because, then, you know, Council

         23  Members who are dealing, like Jessica Lappin, with

         24  situations, if we know that there are several

         25  already, then you can just reach out directly to
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          2  those transportation coordinators.

          3                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  Certainly.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you.

          5  Council Member Lew Fidler of Brooklyn.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Thank you Mr.

          7  Chairman. After Council Member Lappin's commentary

          8  about lawyers, I'm almost hesitant to admit that I

          9  am one, and even more hesitant to bring us back to

         10  the droll topic of preemption.

         11                 But, having been forced to sit

         12  through more than one class on that doctrine and I'm

         13  sure that it's taught at Professor Yassky's school

         14  and a number of my colleagues have had to do it too.

         15    I understand lawyer think, Mr. Best, which is that

         16  if a particular statute is preempted, that the

         17  merits of it, you know, therefore, are beyond

         18  consideration.

         19                 So, I want to, you know, get to that

         20  very threshold issue with you, because it is

         21  important.  Does the federal law specifically

         22  preempt localities or states from adding other

         23  reporting items  --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  And Mr. Best,

         25  before you answer, if you take a minute to think
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          2  about his question, it's not a very complicated

          3  question, but let me just say to both of you, this

          4  Hearing is not to debate that subject area.  So, I'm

          5  going to let it go for two or three minutes, but I'm

          6  not going to let it go for too long.

          7                 MR. BEST:  Chairman Jackson, I'm

          8  happy to keep this, as the Councilman said, lawyer

          9  thing, to a minimum for the Committee Members and I

         10  will try to be, I will try to be brief.

         11                 To directly answer you question,

         12  Councilman, we are concerned that the federal law

         13  does preempt report, additional reporting in this

         14  area.  That is not to say that, I don't want to

         15  overstate that and say that we are saying that it's

         16  a, you know, we're absolutely certain of all the

         17  details on this. We've asked the New York City Law

         18  Department to advise us on this matter.  I think it

         19  is a serious question and various parts of the bill

         20  that needs to be looked at.  I raise it because I

         21  think it's something that the Committee, as well as

         22  we, should consider in going forward on this bill.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Well  --

         24                 MR. BEST:  And that's all I'll say

         25  right now.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  --  Mr. Best,

          3  you know, with all deference to the Chairman's

          4  remarks, it is the threshold issue.  We can't even

          5  consider this legislation if it's preempted.  So,

          6  the long and the short of your answer is, no, it

          7  does not specifically preclude municipalities or

          8  states from additional reporting requirements.  So,

          9  you are, therefore, opining that the reporting

         10  that's being requested in 344 are unduly burdensome.

         11    Is that then your opinion?

         12                 MR. BEST:  My, my, well, you know,

         13  I'm going try to answer that as directly as I can,

         14  Councilman.  I appreciate the nature of your

         15  question.  My, from a preemption perspective, there

         16  is  --  I see two questions you're asking me here.

         17  From a pre- emption perspective, I believe that

         18  there is a serious possibility that the federal law

         19  may preempt an additional reporting requirement.

         20                 From the position, from the question

         21  of whether or not it is unduly burdensome because

         22  there is already a tremendous amount of data that

         23  will be reported, both in the MMR and pursuant to

         24  this very lengthy state requirement that we now have

         25  to, that is now going into effect, I do believe that
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          2  given the amount of data that is out there,

          3  regardless of the preemption issue, that there are

          4  going, we're already going to be putting substantial

          5  resources into reporting and our position is that

          6  additional resources, when the data, for the most

          7  part, is going to be out there already, really isn't

          8  necessary.

          9                 That said, they're not exactly the

         10  same questions. So, I'm trying to be as direct as I

         11  can, Councilman, in response to what you're saying,

         12  but they're sort of two questions there, in my view.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Well, there

         14  was sort of two answers.  Because the long and the

         15  short of it is that you said yes, I guess, and the

         16  other is that you're saying that it's duplicative,

         17  which would seem to contradict yes to me, because if

         18  you're already accumulating the data and providing

         19  it, I'm not sure what the extra burden is.

         20                 I looked at the list of things

         21  currently required under the state regs. And in your

         22  testimony, which all seem to kind of be outcome-

         23  related, graduation rates, suspension rates, things

         24  like that.  And, I look at the things that 344 is

         25  asking to be reported, which all seem to be service-

                                                            68

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  related, are we delivering services, how many

          3  evaluations are being made, how many IEPs are there?

          4                 You know, I would think that they are

          5  extraordinarily germane to the oversight function of

          6  this Council in terms of making sure that services

          7  are being provided.  So, I would certainly question

          8  the unduly burdensome answer and, therefore, the

          9  issue of whether or not 344 is actually preempted. I

         10  would tend to differ.

         11                 I would ask you just this one last

         12  question, if the Comptroller of the City of New

         13  York, in his audit capacity, chose to audit the

         14  Department of Education on exactly these questions

         15  to see whether these services were provided, would

         16  federal law prevent him from doing so in asking

         17  these very same questions?

         18                 MR. BEST:  Well, I think, I'm not

         19  sure that it would.  I haven't considered that

         20  question before and I try to be careful in my legal

         21  analysis, so I don't want to speak too much off the

         22  top of my head on it.  But, I would say that the

         23  audit function of the Comptroller is a separate

         24  function from the power of the Council to legislate

         25  as a local legislative matter and that, therefore,
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          2  there may be very different analyses there. But,

          3  beyond that, it's not a question I've considered

          4  before Councilman.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I would

          6  submit to you, sir, that the oversight authority

          7  given to the Council in the City Charter is very,

          8  very similar and just as valid as the audit power

          9  given to the Comptroller in the Charter.  Therefore,

         10  both of these are appropriate actions for us to take

         11  and responsible, because I think the Charter not

         12  only permits us to do it, but expects us to do it.

         13  Therefore, we need to ask these questions about

         14  whether the services that are supposed to be being

         15  provided are actually being provided.  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well, I'm glad

         17  that I have a lot of attorneys on this Committee.

         18  Next, we're going to hear from another attorney, my

         19  colleague from the Bronx, Oliver Koppell.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Thank you

         21  Mr. Chairman. First, I would merely observe as

         22  someone who has practiced for a few years and, in

         23  fact, was the Attorney General of this state, that I

         24  would find it exceedingly difficult to believe that

         25  the requirement to provide this information by the
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          2  City Council would be preempted by federal

          3  legislation.

          4                 In fact, if it were, that

          5  legislation, I have little doubt, would be declared

          6  unconstitutional by the Supreme Court, based on a

          7  line of recent cases, where they've insisted on the

          8  prerogatives of states and, in fact, they held

          9  unconstitutional the rule with respect to guns near

         10  schools, which certainly had more federal

         11  involvement than the fact of providing school

         12  statistics in the area of education, which has

         13  historically been viewed as a local responsibility.

         14                 So, the fact is that this preemption

         15  argument, in my opinion, is really is almost non-

         16  existence, but I'd like to see the language of the

         17  federal statute because I made a final conclusion on

         18  it.  But, I think that my colleague, Lew Fidler, is

         19  absolutely correct.

         20                 Also, I don't know what notice the

         21  Department got with respect to this Hearing, but in

         22  reading the summary of what the Hearing's supposed

         23  to cover, it says here today's Hearing will focus

         24  specifically on the DOE's compliance with time

         25  frames for evaluation and placement, time frames.
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          2  Now, I think that the report on special education

          3  that was given was a very interesting one and

          4  brought out some interesting facts, but didn't

          5  really deal with the issue of specific time frames.

          6                 Then, if you look at the legislation

          7  that we're considering this morning, it is very

          8  specific in dealing with time frames.  If I could

          9  ask either one or both of the witnesses to look at

         10  the proposed bill.  Do you have it before you?

         11  Okay, I don't know which one of you wants to answer

         12  this question, but there are two parts of the bill

         13   --  and, by the way, just to say, the Public

         14  Advocate found two years ago and in her ongoing look

         15  that these time frames were not available and that,

         16  in fact, children were waiting for excessively long

         17  times to be evaluated and placed, that's what she

         18  found.

         19                 The fact is that the new requirements

         20  that you talk about have not even gone into effect

         21  yet.  So, certainly, she shouldn't be criticized for

         22  saying that this information wasn't available,

         23  because the very requirements that you're talking

         24  about were not in place and, therefore, were not

         25  reported on.  So, it actually validates, completely
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          2  validates what the Public Advocate did.  The fact

          3  that the federal government and the state had to

          4  come up with these new requirements because,

          5  apparently, they were not being followed.

          6                 But, going to the specific bill that

          7  is a response to the Public Advocate's work and our

          8  findings, the first, there are two parts of the

          9  bill.  The first part of the bill says the

         10  Chancellor shall compile certain data with respect

         11  to each student receiving any special education

         12  service or program, if you look at page three.

         13  That, the list of data that is supposed to be

         14  compiled is 14 different items, all of which, I

         15  assume, are currently in that student's file.  So,

         16  that's not new.  If it's not in the student's file,

         17  it certainly should be.

         18                 It says the district or the region

         19  that serves the student:  Whether the student is an

         20  English language learner. Whether the student has

         21  received a referral for an initial evaluation  --

         22  and by the way, these terms have definitions in the

         23  bill.  Whether the student has undergone an initial

         24  evaluation and the length of time the student had to

         25  wait.  I assume that's in the student's folder.
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          2  Whether the student has an IEP, Individualized

          3  Education Program, I assume that's in the folder.

          4  Whether, as a result of undergoing an initial

          5  evaluation, the student has received a placement and

          6  the length of time the student had to wait.  Again,

          7  I assume that's in every student's file.  If it

          8  isn't, it certainly should be.

          9                 I'm not going to go through each of

         10  these requirements, but every one of these

         11  requirements should already be available to the

         12  Chancellor.  So, I don't think that this

         13  requirement, the first part of the bill, should be

         14  onerous because it ought to be there and if it isn't

         15  there, it certainly ought to be there.

         16                 The second part of the bill says that

         17  a report shall be compiled of basically numerical

         18  data as to how many evaluations there were; as to

         19  how many placements there were; as to how many re-

         20  evaluations there were; and as to how long those

         21  different steps took, so that we can evaluate

         22  whether the process is being carried out in an

         23  efficient manner.

         24                 If you look at the second part of the

         25  bill, there are numerical requirements, just
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          2  numbers, going from one through 19, and it's all

          3  numbers, just numbers.  Now, those numbers, if

          4  they're not covered by the federal state

          5  requirements in this big book that you gave us, they

          6  should be available to you because you should know

          7  how many students were evaluated.  And, if you have

          8  the students folders and given modern computer

          9  technology, it's merely an adding up of the

         10  information that's required for the Chancellor to

         11  have.

         12                 So, I see neither this being

         13  burdensome and certainly it's not irrelevant,

         14  because this is what we want to know, are kids being

         15  evaluated, are they promptly being evaluated, are

         16  they promptly being placed, are they being

         17  appropriately re- evaluated, and that's all this

         18  bill calls for.

         19                 I would suggest that this information

         20  should be available.  If it's already available

         21  because of a federal or state reporting requirement,

         22  it shouldn't cause additional burden on the

         23  Department.  You should say, it's seems to me, you

         24  should say, the only response you should give to

         25  this bill, it seems to me, the only response you
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          2  could give, we don't need a bill, we're doing it

          3  already.  But, you shouldn't have any objection to

          4  there being a bill.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Response?  Is

          6  that information that's outlined that Oliver

          7  basically read, as per the bill, is it available

          8  and, you know, and especially since Betsy's report

          9  has been some time ago, is that information

         10  available or are you saying that you don't have that

         11  information available and the requirement is not in

         12  place yet, so you don't have it available?

         13                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  Not to be repetitive

         14  and I apologize if I am  --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  That's okay  --

         16                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  --  But the

         17  information is not only  --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  --  Sometimes

         19  it takes, sometimes it takes me two or three times

         20  to get the information. I want to be clear.

         21                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  Not only is the

         22  information available, it's publicly reported

         23  already in the Mayor's Management Report.  It says

         24  exactly how many evaluations, both initials, re-

         25  evals, mandated reviews, how many were completed
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          2  during the year, what percent were completed, how

          3  many were in June not completed, what services

          4  children got, how many they got, and there's two

          5  years of data there to be comparative data. So, the

          6  information is there already.  So, I think the issue

          7  is, yes we have it and it's already reported.

          8                 I think the state reporting goes even

          9  further because it's asks critical questions about

         10  if you're not timely, why are you not timely, which

         11  is a question we all have to ask if we want to

         12  continue to improve the system.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  So, all the

         14  bill does is codify what you already do?

         15                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  Well, some of the

         16  information and I am, not that I, I am not the

         17  lawyer, I am a non- lawyer in the room, but I will

         18  tell you that what concerns me about the bill that I

         19  read is some of the time frames and language in the

         20  bill are inconsistent with federal and state

         21  regulations.  So, if we were to follow the bill, we

         22  would actually have to keep two sets of records, one

         23  to follow this bill and one for the state and

         24  federal reporting, because, right now, the way

         25  they're written, they're inconsistent.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Mr.

          3  Chairman, just to finalize, I would ask that the

          4  Department provide you with those details on where

          5  these requirements diverge, so that if we do the

          6  bill, which I suggest we should, they will be with

          7  the appropriate time frames.  If 30 days is not the

          8  appropriate time frame and should 45 or 60, that's a

          9  logical and sensible correction and we should make

         10  it, in my opinion, Mr. Chairman. Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Do you think

         12  that you can provide that information, so that we

         13  can see where you're coming from on that?  Is that

         14   --

         15                 MR. BEST:  We can certainly, we can

         16  certainly take a look at the bill and try to provide

         17  further information to the Committee on that

         18  subject.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay, because,

         20  quite frankly, in my opinion, it appears as though

         21  we're going to move forward, but clearly we want to

         22  be able to communicate with you and if we're going

         23  to move forward, then look at the areas where you

         24  have issues and concerns and try to, you know, work

         25  out and try to reach a consensus if we can, if we
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          2  can, okay?  I appreciate that.  And, Counsel will

          3  follow- up on that.  The next --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Mr.

          5  Chairman, I'm going to go out for a minute, but I'm

          6  coming back.  I don't want to be impolite.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Sure.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.  Let me

         10  just recognize my colleague from Brooklyn, Bill de

         11  Blasio, sitting to my immediate left, your right.

         12  Next, we're going to hear from another attorney,

         13  David Yassky of Brooklyn.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Right, but,

         15  here, Mr. Chair, in my capacity as Member of the

         16  Council  --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  I know that  --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  --  Just to

         19  be clear.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  --  You know I

         21  know that David.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Just, don't

         23  want to be sued for malpractice by anybody.  I

         24  won't, I heard your point before and I agree with

         25  you, we should not be spending time on the, as
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          2  Council Member Fidler referred to, as a threshold

          3  question of preemption,  The Department, though, by

          4  having raised it, kind of raises that question.

          5                 I just want to put myself on record

          6  as agreeing with at least Council Members Fidler and

          7  Koppell and I believe, Council Member Liu and maybe

          8  others who spoke before I was here, that I think

          9  it's really not a, this argument just doesn't really

         10  pass a laugh test, with respect, Mr. Best.

         11                 It cannot be, I mean, as Council

         12  Member Fidler pointed out, if the Comptroller were

         13  to ask for this information, you plainly would

         14  provide it.  If the Mayor were to put out, were to

         15  promulgate his own rule that the Department should

         16  produce this information and make it public, that

         17  would, plainly, the Department would do that.

         18                 That would be, if the federal law

         19  preempts one part of the City government from asking

         20  the Department to do it, it preempts another part of

         21  the City government from asking the Department to do

         22  it.  So, plainly, you can't take the position that

         23  the Mayor could order it, but the Council could not

         24  and that the federal law has some preemptive effect

         25  on what the Council requires from a part of the City
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          2  government, but it doesn't have a preemptive effect

          3  on what the Mayor can require from a part of City

          4  government.  That just is, would reflect, I think, a

          5  real ignorance of federal preemption law that I'm

          6  sure you don't posses.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  But, David, can

          8  I hear what his response was?  Do you agree with

          9  Council Member Yassky in that?

         10                 MR. BEST:  I would simply say that

         11  the  --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  That the Mayor

         13  could ask you for information and you would have to

         14  tell the Mayor the same answer that you gave us?

         15                 MR. BEST:  The Mayor asking for

         16  information and the Mayor promulgating, let's say an

         17  administrative rule, would be very different things,

         18  just as I think that the Council's oversight

         19  function and the Council's legislative power are,

         20  although not unrelated, different things as a legal

         21  matter. Therefore  --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Of course

         23  they're different.

         24                 MR. BEST:  Therefore  --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  I'm sorry, I
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          2  don't want to waste  --  of course they're different

          3  as a legal matter, but that, it can't be that

          4  federal law preempts one but not the other, federal

          5  law preempts the local government as an entity from

          6  doing things, it doesn't say with this part.

          7                 MR. BEST:  Respectfully, I'm not at

          8  all sure that's correct, but, you know, rather than

          9  have a detailed legal argument, I'll be happy to

         10  talk to you about that individually, rather than, I

         11  know the Committee's been quite patient throughout

         12  listening to the lawyers.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Fair enough.

         14  But, so, I do, you know, it's only because this is

         15  part of, I think, a larger pattern of the Department

         16  coming to a Hearing on a substantive topic and

         17  raising really, at the outset, a question of

         18  authority or preemption that ends up, kind of, I

         19  think distracting from discussion of the issues of

         20  substance.  I hope that that will become a less

         21  frequent occurrence, rather than a more frequent or

         22  as frequent occurrence.  That's just the hope and

         23  wish I want to put on the record Mr. Chair.

         24                 Ms. Wernikoff, and you know, to be

         25  clear on, I feel compelled to say this, that I am a
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          2  unbalanced, I think, a fan of the Chancellor and the

          3  job he's doing.  I'm not somebody who comes here and

          4  says, you know, the Department's doing a terrible

          5  job and I've got find a place to criticize.  So, I

          6  don't think you should, the Department should take

          7  criticism as being in that vain.

          8                 Special ed. Is one are that I think,

          9  as you recognize, has persistently generated some

         10  unhappiness on the part of the constituents that you

         11  serve and I serve and you've been, you know, very

         12  forthright about that in the past.  Just to be, on

         13  the 60 day deadline, I'm not sure if this was ever

         14  made clear, what percent of cases are handled within

         15  the 60 days?

         16                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  I can go from last

         17  school year. In last school year, we, I did an

         18  analysis of the initial referrals to special ed. And

         19  what I can tell you is that 87.3 percent of the

         20  initial referrals were completed within the 60 days.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Complete?

         22  The referrals complete within 60 days of getting

         23  permission for it and then, the 60, is that, that's

         24  the first deadline, am I correct? That when you get

         25  a parent's permission to do the evaluation, then
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          2  there's 60 days to complete it?

          3                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  It's actually 60

          4  days, it's actually, the time, we're in, we're

          5  during a change, because the law just changed, is

          6  that it's now, it's 60 calendar days from parental

          7  consent to make an eligibility determination.  That

          8  means you've done your evaluations, you've had an

          9  IEP meeting and you've made a recommendation, we

         10  call it a program recommendation.  This child needs

         11  special ed. Services, what they are, or this child

         12  doesn't need special ed. Services.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Then, there's

         14  another deadline to the point where a placement has

         15  to be made, is that correct?

         16                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  What the law says is

         17  then you have, and this is, I didn't write the law,

         18  it says you have 60 schools days from parental

         19  consent to evaluate to arrange for services.  So,

         20  you've made your recommendation, now you have to

         21  arrange for the services.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Okay, I get

         23  it.  So, it's 60 calendar days, which is faster than

         24  60 school days, to kind of complete the evaluation,

         25  decide if services are necessary and then maybe it's
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          2  another 20, who knows, whatever, but it's a total of

          3  60 schools days to the point where a placement must

          4  be made. The 87 percent refers to which one?

          5                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  87, how many children

          6  were actually evaluated within the time frame and an

          7  eligibility decision made.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  And how are

          9  you doing on the placement deadline,  --

         10                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  Well, I  --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  --  The

         12  deadline for making placements?

         13                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  Placing, we have

         14  improved our placement, but placement is, I think,

         15  last time we looked, it said, placement has many

         16  different aspects.  There is placement in your

         17  primary program, be that special ed. Teacher support

         18  or team teaching.  We found that within about,

         19  approximately 81 percent of the children were

         20  getting their primary placement within those time

         21  frames.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Okay, so

         23  you're saying there are about 19 percent who it

         24  takes longer than the 60 days, even for the primary.

         25    And, I'm not trying to be argumentative, I just
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          2  want to make sure I understand, is primary placement

          3  what's required by the law or kind of complete

          4  placement?

          5                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  It, you know, it says

          6  arrange for services.  So, if a particular child may

          7  have a primary placement and may have related

          8  services, may have supplemental services as well.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  And what

         10  percent, do you think, are getting their full range

         11  of services arranged for within the 60 school day

         12  time line?

         13                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  I would say it's very

         14  hard because you look at each service different.

         15  So, let's say, for argument sake, occupational and

         16  physical therapy, those are two national shortage

         17  areas.  So, we have, may have students who get them,

         18  services right away and there are service students

         19  that we need to look for non- DOE staff, which takes

         20  a longer amount of time.

         21                 I think I just need to  --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Is it half?

         23  I mean, just as a ball park number?

         24                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  I would say that I

         25  can get you that information.  I do know for
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          2  occupational and physical therapy, we have increased

          3  the number of staff we've hired in last year,

          4  looking at the increases, we've increased by 2,000,

          5  the number of students receiving OT and a thousand

          6  PT.

          7                 But, I just need to say something, I

          8  guess as the educator, I think we are, absolutely

          9  agree that time frames are important and that we

         10  have to be very conscious of them.  But, I also want

         11  to raise the issue that there are kids behind those

         12  numbers and sometimes there's a natural tension.

         13                 So, for example, for placement, we

         14  could simply say, here's your placement, this is

         15  where you go.  But, there are also children that

         16  have a variety of needs and issues and we want to be

         17  able to work with parents and a parent may want to

         18  visit multiple sites.  We don't want to say, no, I'm

         19  sorry, you can't visit multiple sites because now

         20  it's going to be 61st day and we're going to be out

         21  of compliance.  Or, I'm, we're in the middle of

         22  doing an evaluation for a child and somebody says,

         23  you know what, Linda really needs a specialized

         24  assessment, we really need to get a neurological to

         25  make a good decision.  We can't say, oh no, we can't
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          2  do that, because it will take longer.

          3                 So, I think we need to balance the

          4  two things, that, yes, time frames are absolutely

          5  important, look at them. But, we also want to make

          6  sure we make appropriate educational decisions about

          7  kids that will influence their entire life.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Okay.  Well,

          9  I get that and I would agree with that.  In other

         10  words, I would agree with you that you want, you

         11  know, you don't want to simply, in order to meet the

         12  deadline, make a placement or an arrangement that's

         13  not appropriate.

         14                 On the other hand, I guess the, now

         15  that I hear your kind of full answer, it does jive

         16  with what I see from our office of people calling

         17  because they are, you know, their kid is entitled,

         18  they believe, and is to occupational therapy, to

         19  speech, to whatever it is, and they haven't been,

         20  you know, they're not getting it and it's been three

         21  months, four months, five months.  I feel like what

         22  you're saying is, yeah, that's not an aberration.

         23  You know, that  --

         24                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  Well, let me say

         25  this, we have  --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  --  That

          3  actually happens.

          4                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  --  We have kids who

          5  are waiting services, but it's, and what we've done

          6  in the last two years is we've done child by child

          7  reviews and we've sent people out to schools.  What

          8  we've found is that the majority of students who are

          9  awaiting, were waiting not because somebody forgot

         10  about them or didn't know that they needed the

         11  service, it was we simply have shortage of staff

         12  across the country in some of these special ed.

         13  Areas.  I'd like to say what we've done to address

         14  those shortages, because just to say there are

         15  shortages is not doing justice to the issue.

         16                 What we have tried to do is have a

         17  hierarchy, so that we can kind of cast the greatest

         18  net around anybody who's willing to work in these

         19  areas.  So, of course, our first, our first is

         20  hiring Department of Education employees and they

         21  work both day time and after school.  As a matter of

         22  fact, one of the things that we did last year is we

         23  were able to get a waiver from the Conflicts of

         24  Interest Committee, to allow our own DOE staff to

         25  work under the vouchers in allowing them to work
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          2  another ten hours a week to see children who were

          3  not in their school or district to provide these

          4  services.

          5                 We also have agencies under contract

          6  through the Department to provide these services and

          7  then we allow, we give parents vouchers to get

          8  independent providers, because there may be

          9  individuals who work in a hospital, but want to take

         10  on, what we say, private patients.  So, we have cast

         11  this widest net and said, if you're appropriately

         12  licensed in the State of New York to provide these

         13  services, you can work for us, you can work for an

         14  agency, you can work for yourself.  I have to tell

         15  you, even with that, we have not, we don't have

         16  sufficient number of staff.

         17                 The other thing we've done is we have

         18  huge scholarship programs.  We have very aggressive

         19  recruitment and scholarship programs in the area of

         20  speech, occupational and physical therapy.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Okay.  Just

         22  then two more questions.  I know there are other

         23  Members.  Do you have some sense of how we compare

         24  to Los Angeles, Chicago, on meeting these deadlines?

         25    In other words, if we are at 50 percent complete,
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          2  you know, 80 percent primary service arranged, 50

          3  percent full, within the 60 days, are we doing well,

          4  are we doing poorly, are we average?

          5                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  Well, I have to tell

          6  you, just looking at what, I'm going back to the

          7  Hehir Report and one of the things they found is

          8  that, compared with other large cities, used as

          9  comparatives and they used L.A. And Chicago, New

         10  York City devotes significantly greater levels of

         11  resources to the education of children with

         12  disabilities, especially to the commitment to

         13  providing related services, such as speech and

         14  language.  So, and I think, that, so that we have

         15  actually have significantly more staff.

         16                 I think one of the other things is,

         17  is looking at the number of students and one of the

         18  things in the Hehir Report is looking at the numbers

         19  of students recommended for related services.  There

         20  are ways to provide some of these services within

         21  the classroom and we're doing that as well.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Okay and then

         23  just my last, as to the bill, because I do think,

         24  you know, numbers and your administration, I think,

         25  has really been in the forefront here, that numbers
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          2  are kind of useful accountability tools as much as

          3  they can create issues of the kind you point out,

          4  you know, you want to have numbers to go by, at

          5  least to ask the questions.  Then, you say, well,

          6  it's okay that we're only, you know, getting 50

          7  percent arrangement, because it takes longer than 60

          8  days to really figure out exactly what's right for

          9  half the kids.  Maybe that's the answer, maybe not.

         10                 So, in terms of this bill, which I

         11  would support moving forward and having, you know, a

         12  good set of consistent regularly reported numbers,

         13  yes, you said there were inconsistencies here

         14  between what the bill kind of assumes are the

         15  standards and what the real standards are.  I know

         16  Council Member Koppell asked you to provide that

         17  later, but, just because you said you went through

         18  it and noticed, I mean, what's one of the

         19  inconsistencies?

         20                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  Well, first of all,

         21  the one, the original bill and I looked at the

         22  academic school year is not correct.  I mean, this

         23  is a minor thing, but when you do for federal and

         24  state reporting, it's July one through June.  I

         25  remember seeing that the initial referrals, it said
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          2  30 days and it's changed to, it said 30 days from

          3  referral, when it's 60 days from, 60 calendar days

          4  from parental consent.  So, these are, you know,

          5  these are major things if you're going to keep data,

          6  we have to keep it the same for everybody.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Okay, fair

          8  enough.  Yes, I would just reiterate the request.

          9  I'm sure, Mr. Best, I'm sure you can, you're kind of

         10  reserving your right to make the preemption

         11  argument.  Nonetheless, at least say what you

         12  believe are the inconsistencies here.  I'd

         13  appreciate that.  Thank you. Thank you Mr. Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you.  Let

         15  me just say thank you for trying to respond to all

         16  of the questions.  I'm just going to ask one

         17  question and Counsel will follow- up with any

         18  questions that we may have in writing.  Is that

         19  okay?  Good.

         20                 Regarding the business of technology,

         21  the technology plan you mentioned and the request

         22  for information from the vendors, can you give us a

         23  date when you will make a decision about how to move

         24  forward and how soon after that can we expect to see

         25  changes to the data management system?  What's your
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          2  game plan, time frames and what have you?

          3                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  Well, I think we have

          4  two, we have two things going on concurrently.  We

          5  have internal improvements to a web- based on- line

          6  system that we have already started. Then, we have

          7  the second piece, which is the on- line IEP, which

          8  is a much more expansive extension of that program.

          9                 I would image that by, I would say by

         10  the end, and this is off the top of my head,

         11  probably by the end of October a decision will be

         12  made about whether there's an off the shelf product

         13  that's available or whether something needs to be

         14  done more in- house and then an RFP issued shortly

         15  after that if the decision is made that there seems

         16  to be enough capacity out there in the vendor world

         17  to actually have a program or a program close enough

         18  to meet the needs that IBM Global heard when they

         19  went out to all of these focus groups.

         20                 I mean, the end result is we want to

         21  make sure that the system is responsive to the

         22  users.  That's what the analysis will be at this

         23  point.  So, I would say by the end of October.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  You mentioned

         25  earlier, I believe, in your testimony early on about
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          2  a parent advisory group.  Is that information, as to

          3  the members of that, is that listed on your website?

          4                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  I don't know that

          5  it's listed on our website, but I can just tell you

          6  and then we can certainly get you more information

          7  and give you an idea of who's members. The members

          8  that, that are there, we have New York Lawyers for

          9  the Public Interest, AAHRC, Resources for Special

         10  Children, New York State Parent to Parent Offices,

         11  District 75 Coalition. So, we've invited all of the

         12  major, major representatives of parents and advocacy

         13  organizations.  But, we could send you  --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Is Advocates

         15  for Children on your advisory committee?

         16                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  They are invited.

         17  They have come sometimes.  They don't come all the

         18  times.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.  Can you

         20  provide us a list of that committee, if you don't

         21  mind?

         22                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  Sure.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  We'd appreciate

         24  it.  Well, let me just say that I think that when we

         25  talk about school days and calendar days, I believe
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          2  that  --  how many school days are there totally in

          3  the school year?  I believe it's 180, 185, something

          4  like that.  So, I think you made one point of

          5  reference to 60 calendar days, or 60 school days, is

          6  that correct?

          7                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  The law actually has

          8  both in it.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.

         10                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  Certain things are

         11  done in school days and certain things are done in

         12  calendar days and I certainly did not write the law.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Yes, I hear

         14  you.  I think I've heard you say that quite often.

         15  But, you know, 60 calendar days is one thing, but 60

         16  school days is like one- third of this entire school

         17  year.  You know, 60 school days could be anywhere

         18  from three months to three and a half months and

         19  that's an extremely long time with respect to

         20  dealing with ensuring that children receive whatever

         21  mandated services that they're entitled to under the

         22  law.  You would agree with that, right?

         23                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  I think evaluating

         24  and placing children with disabilities is an

         25  important decision that takes the time its needed to
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          2  do the work that's, making, you're making life

          3  decisions for children about their education and

          4  what they need and I think that you need to do that

          5  in a very thoughtful and planned way.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Right.  But, I

          7  mean, if you're talking about a school year and if a

          8  child hasn't received those services in 60 schools

          9  days, which is approximately three to three and a

         10  half months of that school year, as an educator and

         11  as an administrator, you would agree that that's a

         12  long time. Would you agree or disagree with that?

         13                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  Well, I would say

         14  that because, if a child, you know, a child is

         15  getting services, special ed. Is, special ed.

         16  Services are one of the services the child is

         17  getting, there's still an obligation on the part of

         18  the school to meet a child's needs.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  I understand

         20  that, but I'm just asking a simple question.  If a

         21  child is not getting the service with 60 school

         22  days, that's about three to three and a half months,

         23  I'm just asking you a simple question, do you agree

         24  that's an extremely long time considering the fact

         25  that that's one- third of the entire school year?

                                                            97

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  That's the time frame

          3  that's in the law that we follow.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well, that's

          5  the time frame of the law, but how long does it take

          6  you, it doesn't necessarily say that you have to

          7  take the entire 60 days though, isn't that correct?

          8                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  And we don't in many

          9  cases  --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay  --

         11                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  --  We don't.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  I'm sorry, then

         13  let me ask one question.  You answered my colleague,

         14  David Yassky, that approximately 87 percent of the

         15  students are evaluated within the 60, I think that's

         16  60 calendar day time frame, if I'm not mistaken,

         17  whatever  --

         18                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  --  They're

         20  mandated by law. Do you determine or do you map out

         21  specifically what is the average amount of time?

         22  For example, is the average time to evaluate within

         23  that 60 days, that DOE is doing, is it 30 days? Is

         24  it 33.5 days or is it 58.7 days?  You know, all of

         25  it is within 60 days, but what is the average length
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          2  of time to evaluate a student?  Do you have that

          3  statistic?

          4                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  Not off my head, I do

          5  not.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Does your

          7  computer, does any of your systems allow you to

          8  answer a question, what is the average length of

          9  time of evaluating the students, the 87 percent that

         10  you referred to?  What was the average length of

         11  time?

         12                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  We can get back to

         13  you on that.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  So, your system

         15  does provide the specific?

         16                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  I will, I will, I

         17  hear your question and we'll get back to you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  No, I'm just

         19  asking a general question.  Does your system allow

         20  you to get that information out?

         21                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  I am not the systems

         22  expert, I understand  --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  But, no, but

         24   --

         25                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  --  The question  --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  --  You're the

          3   --

          4                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  --  I will  --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  --  Excuse me,

          6  but you're the Deputy Superintendent and you should

          7  know, in my opinion, whether or not your system,

          8  overall, is able to ascertain that information.

          9                 In fact, in my opinion, you should

         10  know how long it takes for the initial evaluation.

         11  I understand you have the statistic that 87 percent

         12  are evaluated within the 60 days, but you should

         13  know if it takes 53.5 days on average.  You should

         14  know that, in my opinion.

         15                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  I appreciate that,

         16  but I also would bring to your attention that kids

         17  with disabilities range from very mild to moderate

         18  disabilities to very severe disabilities and to

         19  think that every child is going to be evaluated in

         20  the same length of time, that's not going to, that's

         21  just not going to happen if you're going to make the

         22  appropriate decisions.  So, I understand your need

         23  for one answer, it's not that simple.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  I understand

         25  that it's not simple and I understand that, as one
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          2  of my previous colleagues said, each case is an

          3  individualized case.  That's why they have an IEP.

          4  But, for you to say that there are some cases that

          5  are more difficult than the other, does not even

          6  come into play as to what the average time frame is.

          7                 Some cases may take ten days, others

          8  may take 70 days, other cases may take 25.  But, if

          9  you put them all together, you have to come with an

         10  average and I'm trying to determine what is the

         11  average length of time.

         12                 These are type of statistics that we

         13  want to know, because as a result of that, we're

         14  hearing complaints about, you know, things are taken

         15  too long and people are not being placed and other

         16  things like that.  So, in order for us to evaluate

         17  that and in order for you to evaluate it, you need

         18  to know, for example, I guess if I was in your

         19  responsibility, why is it taking 57 days? Assuming

         20  that it's taking 57 days, and I don't know what it's

         21  taking.  But, you know, I know that 87 percent and

         22  what are we doing to reduce that?

         23                 I mean, I'm sure you're asking those

         24  questions, but, obviously, as oversight, I want to

         25  know the average length of time.  And, for example,
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          2  even those whatever, 13 or 14 percent that are not

          3  being evaluated within 60 days, how long is it

          4  taking?  Is it taking 90 days?  Is it taking 120

          5  days?  Then, map that out.

          6                 The same as when a credit, when you

          7  owe money to a credit card company, and they say,

          8  you have to pay within 30 days, or you haven't paid

          9  within 60, 90, 120, and they tell you that on the

         10  form.  You should be able to communicate, in my

         11  opinion, whether or not those 13 percent, whether or

         12  not 80 percent of that 13 percent is being evaluated

         13  within 90 days or it's taking 120 days.

         14                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  Okay.  I hear you and

         15  we'll get back to you.  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well, let me

         17  just thank both of you for coming in.  This is a

         18  very, very important subject area and I'm going to

         19  close with my colleague and the co- sponsor of this,

         20  Betsy Gotbaum.

         21                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:  Just two

         22  more questions, if you will.  Sorry to be johnny one

         23  note on this one, but three months ago, the

         24  Department of Education told us that there was a

         25  waiver policy for children with special education in
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          2  terms of cell phones.  We've been asking for that

          3  policy.  We have not gotten the policy yet and I

          4  think as part of this Hearing, it's a little bit off

          5  the subject, but I do think it's important to our

          6  constituents and to us.  When will we get the

          7  information about the waiver for parents?

          8                 MR. BEST:  It's actually, if I might,

          9  just for clarity sake, the, there's a, in the

         10  regulation, in our regulations now, there is a

         11  medical exception, a medical exception where the

         12  principal has to make a determination about the

         13  medical, that there's a medical reason for a cell

         14  phone to be used.

         15                 That is, we've been, I know that your

         16  office has been in contact with the Department about

         17  that.  I believe that that policy is being, the

         18  details on that is being, are being finalized and we

         19  should be able to share that shortly.

         20                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:  So, all

         21  right, so it's only people who have a medical

         22  reason, a child who is blind, but isn't medically in

         23  any other way affected, would not have the capacity

         24  of having a cell phone, is that what you're

         25  implying?
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          2                 MR. BEST:  I'm not implying that any

          3  particular individual student, based on their

          4  medical condition would or would not have the, would

          5  or would not have the ability to take advantage of

          6  that exception.  I would simply say that there's

          7  going, you know, we're going to be finalizing the

          8  policy on, the details of that policy, as we've been

          9  discussing with your office and we will be, that

         10  should be done shortly.

         11                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:  Okay,

         12  because we have been waiting for three months and we

         13  would also like to know exactly what the policy is

         14  so we can let our constituents know.

         15                 My final question is that in 2004,

         16  the Department entered into a five- year no- bid

         17  contract for $12.5 million  -- this becomes my other

         18  johnny one note issue it seems  --  with something

         19  called All Kinds of Minds.  This program seems to

         20  place the burden of evaluating special needs

         21  students on the shoulders of our overworked teachers

         22  and does not recognize some learning disabilities.

         23  Two and a half years after rewarding All Kind of

         24  Minds this contract, what exactly is All Kinds of

         25  Minds doing in our schools and what is the
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          2  Department doing to evaluate its success or failure?

          3                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  First of all, All

          4  Kinds of Minds is not something, it's not an

          5  evaluation tool.  All Kinds of Minds was actually a

          6  program that was developed to help teachers and

          7  really general ed. Teachers understand how children

          8  learn, so that they could also be better observers

          9  that when there are break downs in learning, when

         10  they're occurring.

         11                 It also provides teachers, classroom

         12  teachers, with over 300 strategies of how, how to

         13  address children who learn differently.  One thing

         14  that's very important about the model, it's not

         15  built on a deficit model, like, how do, it looks at

         16  what are the strengths that the student has and how

         17  do I build on those strengths to make this child

         18  succeed in the classroom.

         19                 So, Schools Attuned is not about

         20  evaluating, does not place burden on teachers to

         21  evaluate.  It's really an instructional tool to help

         22  teachers be able to present a lesson in a way that

         23  children can learn.  One of the mottos in special

         24  ed., if children don't learn the way we teach them,

         25  we teach them the way they learn.  That is what
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          2  Schools Attuned helps teachers do.

          3                 I think that our, I get a lot of e-

          4  mails and one of the, I think some of the best

          5  feedback we've had from both principals and teachers

          6  is about how wonderful this program has been in

          7  helping them be better teachers.  One teacher wrote

          8  to me that it's like having a full- time mentor next

          9  to me because I have this book of strategies that

         10  has really helped me.

         11                 I think what we're doing now is

         12  looking at the schools that have implemented Schools

         13  Attuned and looking at indicators against things

         14  like attendance, suspension, and academic

         15  achievement to see if they're making a difference.

         16  Now, again, the program has been in two years.

         17  We're beginning to look at it and we'll certainly

         18  share data as soon as we have it. But, the program

         19  has been very successful.

         20                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:  Okay.

         21  Thank you very much.  Now I'm finished.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Let me just

         23  acknowledge my college, Helen Diane Foster of the

         24  Bronx and David Yassky had one additional question,

         25  so, my colleague, David Yassky.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Just very

          3  quickly, because I want to follow- up on the Chair's

          4  back and forth with you about the deadline numbers.

          5  I mean, I have to say, I would agree with him that

          6  it seems to me that if you're running the system,

          7  you'd want to know what's the average, you know,

          8  time it takes to make the evaluation.

          9                 Both in response to me and the Chair,

         10  you said, well the numbers, they're numbers, but

         11  they're very, there are whole complicated stories

         12  behind the numbers.  Of course, but my question is,

         13  does the number tell you something useful or not? In

         14  other words, does the number of what percent of

         15  cases you're making the 60- day deadline, that

         16  number, does the number, the average wait time, do

         17  you think that tells you something useful or nothing

         18  useful at all?

         19                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  I would never say

         20  that data doesn't provide you anything useful.  I

         21  think you want to always look to see what are the

         22  issues, so I would say  --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Of course  --

         24                 MS. WERNIKOFF:  --  Data is always

         25  useful.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Of course,

          3  and that's my only question, because I think we all

          4  would agree that, you know, the number by itself,

          5  you want to understand, it's just really a way of

          6  asking and posing questions that you then have to

          7  figure out.  But, the number tells you something

          8  really useful.

          9                 So, I think we should agree on that

         10  and we should agree, you know, let's get those

         11  numbers out there.  Then, the real Hearing can be

         12  about what are these numbers telling us about what

         13  we need to do better or differently and not kind of

         14  debate about whether we want to produce the numbers.

         15    That's my point. Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well, I'm

         17  sorry, Council Member Felder.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  I just want

         19  to be on record as not having asked a question at

         20  this Hearing.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  So, let the

         22  record reflect that Simcha Felder, the Council

         23  Member of Brooklyn, was listening.  He heard all of

         24  the questions, heard all of the responses and he

         25  does not have any questions to ask whatsoever.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  So, Michael

          4  Best, General Counsel of DOE and Linda Wernikoff,

          5  Deputy Superintendent of Special Education

          6  Initiatives, let me thank you both for coming in.

          7  Look forward to working with you.

          8                 Next, we're going to hear from Scott

          9  Greenspan. He is a parent and he's representing

         10  himself.  Scott Greenspan, welcome.

         11                 MR. GREENSPAN:  Okay.  May I begin?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Good afternoon

         13  and welcome.

         14                 MR. GREENSPAN:  Yes, thank you

         15  Councilman Jackson. I just wanted to wish everybody

         16  a good afternoon, Public Advocate Betsy Gotbaum,

         17  Chairman Jackson and Members of this Education

         18  Committee.

         19                 My name is Scott Greenspan.  I'm an

         20  attorney in private practice and a resident of New

         21  York City.  Most importantly, though, I am the

         22  father of a beautiful nine year old child who

         23  suffers from autism, my son.  For the sake of his

         24  privacy, I'll be referring to him as my son instead

         25  of his full name, or I wouldn't be able to return
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          2  home to my beautiful wife.

          3                 My son is the sweetest person that

          4  you'll ever meet.  He's kind, he's gentle, he loves

          5  his family.  His favorite thing in the world is to

          6  go with me to Great Adventure or Dorney Park and

          7  ride the roller coasters on the weekends.

          8                 But, there is another side to my son

          9  and the side that brings me here today, Mr.

         10  Chairman.  My son's autism is extremely severe.

         11  He's non- verbal and really incapable of any sort of

         12  independent existence.  He needs help going to the

         13  bathroom.  He needs help dressing himself.  He needs

         14  help feeding.  He can't verbalize even his most

         15  basic needs and often explodes crying when he wants

         16  something, rather than saying the word.  If you're

         17  not holding my son's hands in a public place, he

         18  will run away from you as fast as he can, even if

         19  that means running into traffic.

         20                 My son also has a condition called

         21  PICA, which, essentially, is a disorder where the

         22  child puts everything in his mouth, whether it's

         23  food, razor blades or motor oil.  This is a real

         24  danger to him and as a result of it, my son really

         25  has to be watched and supervised at all times.
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          2                 My son's also remarkably physical

          3  able.  He can run faster than I can and jump farther

          4  than I can, and you can. Because of this, I would

          5  sort of analogize taking care of my son to watching

          6  a two year old with the body and physical attributes

          7  of a nine year old.  You really have to be very

          8  careful.

          9                 Taking care of my son is a joy, but

         10  it's exhausting.  I wish I could say that I had

         11  dreams for him that most parents have, like sending

         12  their kid to college, seeing them have

         13  grandchildren, but I really don't because of the

         14  severity of his condition.  My dream is that one day

         15  he'll say, daddy, I love you.

         16                 It's for my son's sake that I'm here

         17  to testify today in support of Introduction Number

         18  344.  I listened to the Deputy Superintendent's

         19  testimony with a sense of amazement. She,

         20  apparently, I do appreciate all the kind words that

         21  she expressed for special needs children, but she

         22  may live in a different world than the people who

         23  work for her.

         24                 The reality is, and I'll tell you in

         25  more specific terms my son's case, when you call the
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          2  people at the Committee on Special Education and you

          3  ask them about transportation needs, you ask them

          4  about related services authorizations, you asked

          5  them where the status of them evaluating your child

          6  is, you don't get your phone calls returned.

          7                 The staff that works for the

          8  Committee on Special Education doesn't answer the

          9  phone half the time.  You get their voice- mail and

         10  then they don't return those.  Where's the statistic

         11  about that, Mr. Chairman?  And, where's the answer

         12  that she said, she sat there and she testified that

         13  they have a commitment to answering and being

         14  responsive to parents.  Not in the world that I live

         15  in.  Not in the world that my son lives in. That's

         16  why we need statistics, because statistics do tell a

         17  story.  Statistics say what, in general, is going on

         18  with these children who need so much.

         19                 Yeah, it is true, you have to look

         20  behind the statistics, but if you have a Department

         21  of Education who is not responding to parents, not

         22  promptly making evaluations, not communicating with

         23  parents, you'll see that in those statistics.

         24                 For their Counsel to sit here and say

         25  that maybe it's preempted, when he couldn't even
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          2  tell you  --  and I'm a lawyer too, I work at a

          3  large firm, I've been doing this for 12 years  --

          4  he couldn't even give you a rational basis, an

          5  argument behind why this introduction is preempted,

          6  because there is none.  It's a reporting

          7  requirement.  It's not a funding thing.  It's not a

          8  mandate  -- it just says, give us data, so we can

          9  help oversee the Department of Education and help

         10  children like my son with his autism, who needs

         11  people on his side.  It's a great bill.

         12                 Now, I want to talk in some detail

         13  about my son's case.  Suffice it to say, in a

         14  nutshell, rather than helping my wife and my son get

         15  the best care, the best transportation possible,

         16  safe transportation, the Department of Education has

         17  thrown road block after road block after road block

         18  towards our son's education.  It's an absolute

         19  disgrace and the Department must be held accountable

         20  and that's why this Hearing is such a good thing.

         21                 I can only wonder how many other

         22  parents with autistic children, one of the largest

         23  exploding populations of school children confronting

         24  our school system today, are suffering similarly

         25  from the mishandling of their children's education.
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          2  That's why we need this legislation to be passed.

          3                 The fact is, as of today, we don't

          4  have enough statistical information.  The Deputy

          5  Superintendent stood up here and couldn't even tell

          6  you percentages, you know, on very important

          7  statistics.  You know, how many kids, I just was a

          8  little incredulous.

          9                 Metrics and statistics work.  Many

         10  city departments use it.  Let's take the police

         11  department.  The police department has, what's it

         12  called?  CRIMESTAT? Where it allows the police

         13  department to see patterns of crime.  If it's good

         14  enough for the police department, it's good enough

         15  for children with developmental disabilities.  If

         16  the cops can have it, so should the Council and so

         17  should, you know, so should the UFT and so should

         18  children, parents of children with disabilities.

         19                 Now, let me turn to my specific case,

         20  which is anecdotal evidence, as was sort of

         21  derisively talked about, but it's the only evidence

         22  that I can give you.  I can give you my son's story

         23  and you can do with it as you would.

         24                 One of the biggest failures that the

         25  Department of Education has perpetrated with respect
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          2  to my son's education, is its continuing failure, a

          3  week after school has started, to provide my son

          4  with what's called a crisis paraprofessional or

          5  crisis para.  That's a person who follows your child

          6  around all day and makes sure that he doesn't

          7  swallow razor blades, he doesn't drink solvent.

          8                 A crisis para is mandated on my son's

          9  IEP and over a week has gone by since his school has

         10  began and guess what? No crisis para.  When my son's

         11  teacher had the school call up the Department of

         12  Education and ask them, where is the crisis para,

         13  they said they were working on it.  Well, you know

         14  what? That just doesn't work for a child who will

         15  put anything in his mouth, even if it's something

         16  that could kill him.  I guarantee you that if my son

         17  were Chancellor Klein's son, he'd have a crisis para

         18  on the first day of school, but he doesn't.  That's

         19  why we need statistics.

         20                 I want to also talk about my son's

         21  transportation issues and the lack of responsiveness

         22  there.  My son lives in Staten Island during the

         23  week with his grandparents and goes to a school for

         24  children with autism in Manhattan, called the

         25  Rebecca School.  My son used to attend a school in
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          2  Rockland County called Prime Time for Kids.  When he

          3  attended Prime Time for Kids, he was always provided

          4  with a transportation paraprofessional, otherwise

          5  known as a matron, to supervise him on the bus, make

          6  sure he didn't do anything to hurt himself.  That

          7  was never formally on my son's IEP, but was simply

          8  provided because of the severity of the disability.

          9                 In 2004, Mr. Chairman, without the

         10  need for a hearing, my son was given his own bus

         11  route by the Office of Pupil Transportation due to

         12  the overly long length of the route they had first

         13  assigned him.  However, this year, when my son

         14  switched to the Rebecca School, the Department of

         15  Education dropped the ball on my son's

         16  transportation.

         17                 At first, they failed to provide him

         18  with any bussing whatsoever and Councilwoman Lapping

         19  started to allude to this.  For at least three weeks

         20  before the start of school, my son's school called,

         21  urged and begged the OPT to schedule a bus for my

         22  son but was completely rebuffed.  They didn't return

         23  multiple phone calls and they also didn't return

         24  phone calls from the Committee on Special Education.

         25                 They also repeatedly promised me over
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          2  the phone, when I did get in touch with them, that

          3  we would have a bus. But, every time I checked in

          4  with the OPT to verify, you know, Reagan said trust,

          5  but verify, the OPT wouldn't have a route for him or

          6  a bus and the operator would say, we don't have a

          7  bus route for your kid.

          8                 Last week, on the day before my son's

          9  school was to begin, I had several phone calls with

         10  one of the top executives at the Office of Pupil

         11  Transportation, who callously told me that no bus

         12  had been hired, that it would be difficult to find

         13  one in time for the beginning of school and that

         14  they were, again, working on it.

         15                 The last straw came when this

         16  official told me that I should call him at 4:00 p.m.

         17  On the day before school started and check on his

         18  progress.  At that point, I got in touch with

         19  Council Member Lappin's office and through the

         20  efforts of her office, the OPT relented and

         21  miraculously found a bus to take my son to the first

         22  day of school.  I have no doubt that had I not

         23  called Council Member Lappin, we'd probably still be

         24  waiting for the OPT to be working on it.  My

         25  question, really my concern is, what happens to
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          2  those parents who don't think to call their Council

          3  Member?  Do they get the bus on time?

          4                 But the transportation problems

          5  weren't over yet. The bus route that OPT secured for

          6  my son involved a multi borough route that took and

          7  takes almost two hours each way.  The bus picks up

          8  my son at 6:40 a.m., then picks up another child in

          9  Staten Island, then goes to Brooklyn and then first

         10  heads to Manhattan.  It's an hour and 50 minutes to

         11  two hours each way. As a result, when my son arrives

         12  at school he's usually wet because he couldn't hold

         13  it that long.  That's a disgrace.

         14                 On the way back, it's the same thing,

         15  two hours, comes home wet, he's upset, riled, he

         16  can't sleep.  It's killing his learning.  When I ask

         17  the OPT to give my son a shorter route, I expected,

         18  Mr. Chairman, that as I did in 2004, they would, you

         19  know, I'd send them a letter and they would do it.

         20  But, not this time.  Instead, they came after the

         21  bus services that they were providing us.

         22                 Specifically, I received a letter

         23  dated September 14th from the Committee on Special

         24  Education, demanding that I appear for a hearing

         25  this coming Monday and bring "medical documentation"
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          2  to substantiate why my son needs a transportation

          3  paraprofessional and a shorter bus route.  This is

          4  absolutely unbelievable given that my son's been

          5  receiving a transportation paraprofessional for the

          6  last five years.  Now, suddenly, they need medical

          7  documentation.

          8                 Well, guess what? The CSC has

          9  mountains of that documentation in their file

         10  attesting to the severity of my son's disability.

         11  Indeed reports from a July 11, 2006 evaluation of my

         12  son stated, "he needs intensive supervision."  "He

         13  requires the assistance of an additional adult" and

         14   "he has PICA and will put everything in his mouth."

         15                 Given these facts today, I called up

         16  one of the funding coordinators for the Committee on

         17  Special Education, whose a Ph.D., yesterday and

         18  asked him why do you need medical documentation when

         19  your files are chock full of proof of how severely

         20  disabled my son is and when you've been providing

         21  these services for five years?  Now you're going to

         22  take me to a hearing?  What's going on here?  He

         23  said that, he wouldn't give a meaningful answer, he

         24  just said that these were "required."  They required

         25  for the last five years, but, apparently, they are
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          2  now.

          3                 At that point, I offered to produce a

          4  report, which I thought was medical documentation,

          5  from my son's school psychologist, Ph.D. In

          6  psychology, been working with kids with autism for

          7  20 years.  Well, the funding coordinator said that

          8  that was an inappropriate form of documentation

          9  because a child psychologist with a Ph.D. In

         10  psychology, working with children with autism for 20

         11  years was not a "medical professional."

         12                 I just couldn't believe this.  The

         13  first time that I've heard that a psychologist with

         14  decades of experience working, the first time that I

         15  heard such a person wasn't a medical professional.

         16  Apparently, the DOE doesn't think much of

         17  psychologist hired by parents to evaluate their

         18  autistic children, however, even though this July,

         19  when they evaluated my son, guess what kind of

         20  medical professional they used? A psychologist.

         21                 I want to also talk about one last

         22  issue and that's the failure to report back to us on

         23  the DOE's evaluations. For over two months, the DOE

         24  failed to offer us an alternative school for our

         25  son.  That's another problem.  My son was
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          2  languishing at his former school, which was up in

          3  Rockland County.  Sadly, a progress report that we

          4  received from his former school said that with but

          5  one exception, he failed to achieve a single, annual

          6  developmental goal.  For these reasons, my wife and

          7  I concluded that we really had no option but to

          8  change schools.

          9                 So, on July 5th, I wrote the DOE a

         10  letter, I asked them to reopen my son's case and

         11  asked them to place my son in the school where we

         12  ultimately did place him, the Rebecca School. On

         13  July 11th, they did evaluate my son with a

         14  psychologist and a social worker.  Are you ready for

         15  this?  Do you know when they provided me with the

         16  reports that this psychologist and this social

         17  worker generated?  You think it was July?  It

         18  wasn't.  You think it was August?  It wasn't.  You

         19  think it was the beginning of September?  It wasn't

         20  either.  It was September 14th, over two months

         21  after these evaluations had been done in the first

         22  place.

         23                 To make matters worse, the DOE has

         24  continued to fail to provide us with even a single

         25  suggestion for an alternate school placement for my
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          2  son.  It's now September 19, 2006 and the DOE never

          3  provided us with an alternative to the school that

          4  he was going to.  That's a disgrace.

          5                 So, my wife and I decided to place

          6  our son in the Rebecca School in Manhattan.  To do

          7  so, we took a loan of $20,000.00 as the first

          8  installment, paid a lawyer $8,000.00 to begin a due

          9  process proceeding against the DOE to force it to

         10  reimburse us for the cost of the school, and if we

         11  lose the proceeding, we'll have to pay the balance

         12  of the tuition, which is over $50,000.00 more.  That

         13  will be a real financial disaster for us.

         14                 Recently, the DOE requested that I

         15  attend a settlement conference with them about the

         16  case, because that's required as part of the due

         17  process proceedings.  When I arrived at the

         18  conference, the DOE's first statement and only

         19  statement was, why don't you waive the conference.

         20  You don't really need this conference, why don't you

         21  waive the conference?  I said I will not and I'm

         22  prepared, I'm here in good faith, I'm prepared to

         23  listen to any reasonable offer that you have

         24  regarding my son's education.  They said we don't

         25  have one.  They had nothing to offer.  So, the
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          2  conference ended and here we are with our lawyer.

          3                 That sums up how we feel about the

          4  DOE's treatment of special needs children.  Although

          5  their administrators talk a good game in front of

          6  the media and before you when they come before the

          7  Council, the reality, unfortunately, at least for my

          8  son, has been a lot different.  The growing special

          9  needs population really does need the Council's help

         10  and the help of the Public Advocate in overseeing

         11  what the DOE is actually doing, not what they're

         12  saying to you when there's a public Hearing with

         13  media here, but what they're actually doing.

         14                 This is a good bill.  If statistics

         15  are good enough for the police department, they're

         16  good enough for children with special needs and I

         17  urge that you pass the bill. Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Mr. Greenspan,

         19  let me just thank you for coming in and clearly

         20  giving your point of view as far as DOE and their

         21  relationship with you as a parent and their

         22  relationship with you in placing your son and

         23  evaluating and all of the things that are

         24  appropriate.

         25                 Let me just say that I'm like
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          2  dumbfounded that the fact that what you have

          3  described in your testimony and obviously what

          4  you've testified to here today, is completely

          5  different than what I'm hearing from the Department

          6  of Education.  I am glad, I looked around the room

          7  when you began your testimony and I did not see any,

          8  at least from my visual point of view, any officials

          9  from the Department of Education here  --

         10                 MR. GREENSPAN:  No, they left.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  I know that

         12  they're here now, which is good, so they can hear

         13  the ending of your testimony, even though that this

         14  is a public record and that everyone will have an

         15  opportunity to read the record as to what your

         16  testimony was.  So, let me just thank you on behalf

         17  of all of the people that feel the way you feel,

         18  frustrated and, I guess, angry and have to resort

         19  filing litigation against the Department of

         20  Education in order to pursue what you're entitled to

         21  under the law.

         22                 MR. GREENSPAN:  Well, thank you very

         23  much.  I mean, again, it's very difficult to sit

         24  here and go, you know, testify in front of the

         25  public about your son's life and things that are
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          2  very personal.  But, if people don't get up and tell

          3  you what's really going on behind the rhetoric and

          4  the publicity and the public statements that are

          5  made for the benefit of the cameras, you'll never

          6  know and nothing will be done and children like my

          7  son will continue to get ignored by the DOE and that

          8  needs to change.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Public Advocate

         10  Betsy Gotbaum and then Council Member Lappin.

         11                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:  I just

         12  wanted to thank you for your very moving testimony

         13  and it's people like you, who come forward to us,

         14  and tell us these kinds of things that make us more

         15  able to help.  You know, I don't know if you were

         16  here when I got angry, but  --

         17                 MR. GREENSPAN:  I was.

         18                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:  --  The

         19  sort of condescending lawyering, no offense to my

         20  colleagues who are lawyers, you included, but I felt

         21  that that was, it's always a screen behind which

         22  people hide.  But I want to thank you for your

         23  honesty and your candor and we will do everything we

         24  can to help you.

         25                 MR. GREENSPAN:  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Council Member

          3  Lappin and then Council Member Garodnick.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN:  Thank you Mr.

          5  Chairman, I just wanted to thank you, Scott, for

          6  taking the time.  You, I know, have a very busy

          7  schedule, to speak about what is a very personal and

          8  upsetting issue and I've heard from you over the

          9  last year and a half first- hand about your trials

         10  and tribulations with the Department of Education.

         11  It's really heartbreaking and very frustrating and

         12  disappointing that our City has been failing you in

         13  the way that it has.

         14                 As I said earlier, what amazes me

         15  almost most is that you are a very successful

         16  attorney and, as is your wife, and that you have to

         17  go out and hire an attorney, at great expense, is

         18  incredible to me.  I hear it from other parents in

         19  the district and not everybody can afford to hire an

         20  attorney and nobody should have to.  It's really, to

         21  me, it's incredible that you, of all people, have

         22  to.  So, thank you Mr. Chairman and thank you very

         23  much for coming and sharing with us today.

         24                 MR. GREENSPAN:  Well, thank you very

         25  much.  You know, there's just a shortage of schools
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          2  out there for children who have autism and, you

          3  know, in our case, the DOE said, because, you know,

          4  because your son's school is not an approved school,

          5  because it's a new school, come sue us.

          6                 That's really sad given that, you

          7  know, the autism population is exploding, absolutely

          8  exploding and there aren't enough schools now to

          9  service the demand and kids wait for years on

         10  waiting lists.  We happened to get fortunate and

         11  learn about this school, and for the DOE to say, to

         12  turn their back on my son, as they have, and us, my

         13  son's future is just contemptible and it's what

         14  brought me here.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you.

         16  Council Member Dan Garodnick and then Council Member

         17  Helen Diane Foster.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Thank you

         19  Mr. Chairman and, Scott, I also wanted to also add

         20  my voice to this.  You're incredibly courageous and

         21  articulate and your testimony was compelling and I

         22  wanted to also express my thanks to you for being

         23  here and for sharing that story.

         24                 MR. GREENSPAN:  Thank you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  I was,
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          2  there was so much about it that is deeply disturbing

          3  about the way you have been treated by the

          4  Department of Education, I wanted to just ask you

          5  two quick questions, just for clarification.

          6                 MR. GREENSPAN:  Certainly.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  One of the

          8  them was on the bus route.  So, your son had a bus

          9  route that was set out by the Office of Pupil

         10  Transportation at his old school and then when you

         11  went to switch to the Rebecca School, when did you

         12  first reach out to the DOE to start this process.

         13                 MR. GREENSPAN:  Sure.  The school,

         14  actually, reached out to them and that's generally

         15  how the process works. They reached out to the DOE,

         16  well, you know, they reached out to the Office of

         17  Pupil Transportation, which, I guess, is part of the

         18  DOE, about three weeks before school began and I

         19  kept checking, because that's the way I am.  We

         20  lawyers tend to be a little paranoid and we don't

         21  take anything for granted

         22                 So, I kept calling up the DOE, or

         23  rather calling up the Office of Pupil

         24  Transportation, you know, okay, where's my son's bus

         25  route, where the bus route, what's the number,
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          2  what's the company, what's the pick- up time?  It's

          3  not in our computer sir, I don't know, I don't know,

          4  I don't know.

          5                 Finally, it got to the point where

          6  the school called me and said, we need your help,

          7  they are not returning our phone calls, they're, and

          8  it wasn't just me.  It was about 30 or 40 other kids

          9  at the Rebecca School, it wasn't just me, but I'm

         10  allowed, you know, I'm a vocal person and I wouldn't

         11  take no for an answer.  I wasn't about to have my

         12  child sitting on the curb while other children get

         13  to go to school.  My son deserves an education and

         14  transportation to school just as much as the kids

         15  who don't have autism.  So, it was about three

         16  weeks.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  And you

         18  also had the sense to call Council Member Lappin,

         19  which, as you mentioned in your testimony, is not

         20  something that everybody, you know, would think to

         21  do, call their Council Member, and she obviously was

         22  a tremendous, tremendous help here and  --

         23                 MR. GREENSPAN:  She was.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  --  So,

         25  the other thing I wanted to ask you about was when

                                                            129

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  you went to the conference and the DOE

          3  representatives asked you to waive, they asked you

          4  to waive the conference.  What exactly, I'm not even

          5  sure I understand what they wanted from you.  So,

          6  you began the due process hearing.

          7                 MR. GREENSPAN:  I did.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  And under

          9  the due process hearing, there is a settlement

         10  conference prescribed, as you said, right?

         11                 MR. GREENSPAN:  Yeah, it's called the

         12  Dispute Resolution meeting, I believe.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Okay, so

         14  you go to the Dispute Resolution meeting  --

         15                 MR. GREENSPAN:  Correct.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  --  And

         17  the Department of Education shows up and they say,

         18  Mr. Greenspan, we would like you to waive this

         19  conference.  Is that what you said?

         20                 MR. GREENSPAN:  That is what I'm

         21  saying, Councilman Garodnick.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  What

         23  exactly did they want you to do instead of going

         24  forward with the conference? What did they want you

         25  to do?

                                                            130

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2                 MR. GREENSPAN:  They wanted me to

          3  waive my rights to have this conference, once I was

          4  there, and my feeling was, I'm here in good faith, I

          5  have a child with special needs, he needs an

          6  education, he needs an adequate and appropriate, a

          7  free and appropriate public education and I wasn't

          8  about to waive the conference, okay? I spent

          9  $8,000.00 to hire a lawyer to get him the education

         10  that he needs, because it is old school, he hadn't

         11  achieved a single, annual goal, despite six years of

         12  applied behavior analysis type instruction.

         13                 So, I went to the conference.  I

         14  wanted to see what they had to say.  Maybe I was an

         15  optimist, maybe I shouldn't have been.  Well, what

         16  they had to say was we have nothing to offer you,

         17  you want placement in a not approved school, so, you

         18  know, why don't you waive the conference.  I wasn't

         19  about to waive the conference.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Well, Mr.

         21  Greenspan, again, thank you for this and thank you

         22  for your strength through this whole process.  I can

         23  only imagine, this must be very difficult and the

         24  City should be making your life easier and not

         25  harder, so, again, I thank you for being here today.
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          2    Thank you.

          3                 MR. GREENSPAN:  Thanks.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Thank Mr.

          5  Chairman.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  You're welcome.

          7    Next, we'll hear from Helen Diane Foster, Council

          8  Member of the Bronx.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  Thank you Mr.

         10  Greenspan. I sat listening to your testimony, I

         11  guess, with extra ears because my nephew, who lives

         12  in Las Vegas, is four and we found out he's autistic

         13  and the services that he receives are just amazing.

         14  They, you know, the school, he has one on one help

         15  each day that comes to the house.

         16                 So, I sit here and I'm thinking, this

         17  is Las Vegas, Clark County, it's not New York, and

         18  if they can get it right there and his case isn't as

         19  severe as you've described your son, but

         20  nonetheless, for a parent it's equally as

         21  devastating and the feeling of, oh my God what do we

         22  do, I'm sure, is what you deal with every day in

         23  terms of getting him the adequate care.

         24                 What particularly struck me is that

         25  you are an attorney, so you have that level of
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          2  education and you're articulate.  I think of other

          3  constituents who maybe don't even have the language

          4  capability to express their concerns, and their

          5  concern for their child is no different than yours,

          6  maybe their ability to express it is where it comes

          7  in.  What I would like to propose, Chair, often

          8  times we hear from parents or constituents after DOE

          9  speaks.  If there would be a time that either we

         10  have this type of information beforehand, so that we

         11  can actually hold DOE accountable while they're

         12  there.

         13                 We, obviously, don't want to get into

         14  the specifics, but if this is, in fact, the case

         15  that an evaluation was done in July and he's just

         16  getting results in September, is this an isolated

         17  incident or is this their norm?  Is it, what, if his

         18  procedures of calling every day for transportation

         19  aren't the correct ways, well let them answer what

         20  the responsibility is. Because, I think that many

         21  times we sit here after they've testified and are

         22  often outraged about the stories we hear, but

         23  there's no accountability on DOE's end to say, hey,

         24  this is what we did or that's not true.  It's kind

         25  of left.
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          2                 So, I would really recommend that

          3  somehow we are able, in case by case basis, as it's

          4  presented to us, to find out what the issue is,

          5  because he's done his job and, clearly, it appears

          6  that the ball has fallen on DOE's job and they're

          7  not here to say specifically what they did or didn't

          8  do.  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Point well

         10  taken.  Thank you for coming in Mr. Greenspan.  We

         11  appreciate it.  Stay in touch.

         12                 MR. GREENSPAN:  I will.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you.

         14                 MR> GREENSPAN:  Thanks for letting me

         15  testify.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  You're welcome.

         17    Next, we'll hear from Carmen Alvarez from the

         18  United Federation of Teachers. Welcome.  Ms.

         19  Alvarez, would you just, I was going to say, would

         20  you state your title, but I have by your testimony,

         21  that your the Vice President for Special Education

         22  at UFT, is that correct?

         23                 MS. ALVAREZ:  That is correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  And who do you

         25  have with you, accompanying you today there?
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          2                 MS. ALVAREZ:  Ann Englesbe.  She is

          3  the Chairperson of our School Social Workers and

          4  Psychologists Chapter.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.  So, do

          6  you have testimony?

          7                 MS. ALVAREZ:  I do and it's being

          8  disseminated as we speak or as I'm speaking.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Please proceed.

         10                 MS. ALVAREZ:  All right.  Again, my

         11  name is Carmen Alvarez.  I am the UFT Vice President

         12  for Special Education. I am accompanied today by Ann

         13  Englesbe, the Chair of our School Social Workers and

         14  School Psychologists Chapter.  Thank you Chairman

         15  Jackson and Public Advocate Betsy Gotbaum.  We

         16  appreciate this opportunity to testify.

         17                 The United Federation of Teachers

         18  applauds the City Council for seeking better

         19  reporting statistics relating to the evaluation and

         20  delivery of special education services to students.

         21  We support the direction the legislation takes,

         22  because we know that for many students, special

         23  education services have gone missing or have been

         24  compromised.

         25                 We know from our own in school
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          2  experience how the current system can perpetuate

          3  harm where it should uniformly do good.  Knowing the

          4  parameters of a problem is the first step in

          5  correcting it.  If you don't see and share the

          6  information, how can you verify the practices and

          7  the trends?  How do you fix the problem?

          8                 The Department shares the information

          9  you are seeking, and more, on a monthly basis with

         10  its own administrators with counsel for plaintiffs

         11  in the Jose P. Litigation and with the State

         12  Education Department.  The very questions that were

         13  asked today, you could ask them to do that and they

         14  could generate it.  There is no reason why they

         15  cannot, none.

         16                 The statistics on evaluations,

         17  placements and services are not confidential.  Prior

         18  to this Administration, we received this information

         19  regularly and I agree with you, Betsy Gotbaum, is

         20  that you can get it as a break down by district, by

         21  school.

         22                 For example, we would see, this is

         23  before this current Administration, the initial

         24  referral statistics in the Bronx and we could see

         25  that there were 400 referrals made in a district in
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          2  the Bronx.  You would think it was the teachers who

          3  had made the referrals.  It wasn't.  It was the

          4  parents.  400 parents made that referral in that

          5  district.

          6                 As opposed to another district in

          7  Brooklyn, where you could tell those parents wanted

          8  help for their kids, but there were like ten

          9  referrals from parents and none from the teachers,

         10  which tells you there was a pressure point that you

         11  had, where you had the more articulate parents, you

         12  had more requests.  Where you had parents who

         13  couldn't negotiate the system like Mr. Greenspan,

         14  you got zero and it was squelched.  We have that

         15  information.  I still have it if you need to see it,

         16  even though it's four years old, just to prove it's

         17  there.

         18                 So, we agree that you need to access,

         19  you need access to this information in order to

         20  properly exercise your responsibilities to the

         21  citizens and particularly the parents of children

         22  with special needs in this City.  Your request is

         23  not unreasonable.  It is unfortunate that

         24  legislation is required to obtain this information.

         25                 With better and timely information,
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          2  you would see how the system is working.  You would

          3  learn where it is broken and you would bring

          4  pressure to bear to fix it.  I'm going to give you

          5  an example, as a result of this Administration, I

          6  have parents coming to my office asking for help.

          7  It has increased about a thousand percent.  I have a

          8  child, a young lady who called my office, her mother

          9  is Spanish speaking, so I was able to speak to her.

         10  She is 16 years old, she's in a school in the Bronx.

         11    Now, Linda Wernikoff will help me.  She's been

         12  great.  I cannot say she does not help me.

         13                 The point is, what is the

         14  conversation going on in that school building that

         15  that parent has to reach out to me to get the

         16  support they need.  So, this young lady is in a

         17  special ed. Classroom and she says to me, that class

         18  is too high functioning.  I want to learn how to

         19  read and nobody is helping me.  Now, I'm going to

         20  get her the help and Linda's going to help me.  But,

         21  what about the countless other young people and

         22  parents who don't have that access?  What are you

         23  going to, what is this system doing for them, like,

         24  Betsy, like you said, on a systematic basis?  It is

         25  not there.
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          2                 So, I caution you that there is a lot

          3  of work to be done, particularly in the area of

          4  timely and appropriate evaluations and placements.

          5  The Chancellor eliminated the job of Education

          6  Evaluator.  Our school psychologists have become one

          7  man vans playing too many instruments, while, if I

          8  can stretch the metaphor, not being allowed to

          9  perform in the classroom.

         10                 The Chancellor also reduced the

         11  number of other special education professionals,

         12  including the Special Education Supervisor and now

         13  special education staff are under the direct

         14  supervision of principals who frequently do not know

         15  or understand special education regulation and

         16  successful instructional practices.

         17                 Let's take a look at the Education

         18  Evaluator.  Ms. Wernikoff said they are now IEP

         19  teachers.  You should ask, how many of those well

         20  versed educational evaluators are IEP teachers?  You

         21  should ask, how often does that IEP teacher change

         22  every year? Because, unfortunately, the principal,

         23  whose got a lot of pressure to pump up those grades,

         24  are using this IEP teacher for different things, not

         25  necessarily to support a classroom teacher or to
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          2  really be well versed on how to do evaluations for

          3  new kids.

          4                 So, the person who would have that

          5  expertise to really bring a full conversation to the

          6  table is not there.  So, even though they said

          7  they're in the schools, the question is, how are

          8  they in schools, how are they working?

          9                 Before the current school

         10  Administration, we had fiscal transparency.  The

         11  dollars could be followed and you knew where the

         12  money went.  You had good reason to know that the

         13  dollars put into special education went into special

         14  education. Now that the funding is allocated in the

         15  form of block grants, we see principals redirecting

         16  special education funds into their budgets for their

         17  own projects.

         18                 Remember, the pressure is to increase

         19  the level three's and level four's, and academic

         20  interventions services, all those services before

         21  the special ed. Referral, that's a non funded New

         22  York State mandate.  So, where else are you going to

         23  get the money?  You're going to pull it out of

         24  special ed.

         25                 In many cases, the DOE reneged on
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          2  promises to provide school professionals appropriate

          3  support.  It reneged on ongoing professional

          4  development for all staff involved in the evaluation

          5  and placement processes.  It reneged on clerical

          6  assistance, proper space into which work for

          7  everyone providing services and needed facilities,

          8  such as computers, phones and copy machines.

          9                 In short, the checks and balances

         10  that used to be in the, in place are gone.  The

         11  entire evaluation process is now in the lap of less

         12  than 1,000 school psychologists, some 550 social

         13  workers and a tiny cadre of DOE administrators

         14  responsible for some 1,600 schools and more than

         15  150,000 Individual Education Programs.

         16                 The question that I didn't hear the

         17  Department of Ed. Really answer is how well are

         18  these programs really working in the school?  How

         19  are we making sure that the services on the IEP are

         20  really helping those young people achieve

         21  commencement requirements?  I just don't hear how

         22  their work is going to help each individual school,

         23  especially now that we're going into empowerment

         24  schools, how is that conversation changing at the

         25  school level?
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          2                 Again, so please be mindful, don't

          3  point fingers at our members, especially when better

          4  information dissemination will show there are indeed

          5  delays in evaluations and services. These delays are

          6  caused by many variables, most of which are not

          7  under the control of our members.  Among them are:

          8  Insufficient staff, the pausity of resources that

          9  hampers provision of specialized assessments, such

         10  as speech, occupational and physical therapy and the

         11  lack of bilingual services in all these areas.

         12                 I said earlier that we are in general

         13  support of the thrust of this legislation.  Here's

         14  some suggestions that would expand the remedies

         15  provided by the legislation.  The City Council would

         16  require an annual report, one released 90 days after

         17  the end of the school year.  That's not enough.  In

         18  order to help the students' progress, this reporting

         19  should be ongoing. We need remedies throughout the

         20  school year, including the summer.  That's why we

         21  need information released far more frequently than

         22  once a year, perhaps three times a year, to coincide

         23  with report card distribution.

         24                 I'm going to give you a personal

         25  story.  I have a granddaughter who is in the system,
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          2  in a terrific school, and she receives special

          3  education services.  Now, we had meetings with the

          4  school and the pressure from the school to really

          5  include that special ed. Student without really

          6  understanding who that student, how that student

          7  learned, almost caused my granddaughter to repeat

          8  that grade because they didn't understand special

          9  ed. Regulation.  I'll tell you why.

         10                 This is what happened.  The special

         11  ed. Reg. Says in the eighth grade you have to meet

         12  the requirement, you have to pass the course, as

         13  well as your reading exams and your math exams, in

         14  order to move on to the ninth grade.  You have to

         15  fail all four.  The school thought, and she had

         16  problems with passing the class, not the test, but

         17  the class, they were going to fail her and hold her

         18  back because they didn't understand that it had to

         19  be a course, four core subjects, they were counting

         20  a minor subject as one of those courses.

         21                 Well, to bring closure to that piece,

         22  I gave the legislate all the information, the

         23  Chancellor's regs. To the school and I said, you

         24  need to read it.  Listen, I'm the Vice President of

         25  Special Ed., didn't make a damn bit of difference.
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          2  So, this is another case that how do you help

          3  parents who can't articulate?  Long story short, we

          4  came back from the meeting, instead of them telling

          5  us she has to hold the grade back, they realized

          6  their errors of their way, and they said, yes, she

          7  can go to summer school.  She went to summer school,

          8  aced everything, because it wasn't the problem.  The

          9  problem was they didn't know who she, they didn't

         10  really acknowledge who she was and they needed to

         11  make that accommodation in their evaluation.

         12                 All the teachers in the summer

         13  program said, what are you doing here?  You didn't

         14  need to be here.  She did it. She's now in the ninth

         15  grade and she's doing very well.  But, I'll tell you

         16  one thing, I am going to be at every report card

         17  meeting and make sure that the services on that IEP

         18  are working for her.  If they don't, they're

         19  changing it.  They're going to reconfigure it, so we

         20  make sure the support she needs is received.

         21                 So, in closing, I would just say the

         22  following as well.  Right now, there is a method of

         23  disseminating information on student evaluation and

         24  placements and delivery of related service.  It's

         25  even done electronically.  So, don't let them tell
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          2  you it isn't.  It should be made available to all

          3  the stakeholders in the educational community.  The

          4  stakeholders are parents, teachers, unions, advocacy

          5  groups.

          6                 Currently, the DOE treats the

          7  information as though they were a state secret.  The

          8  educational community and the public should have

          9  access to all non- confidential information on a

         10  regular basis and providing it electronically makes

         11  sense. That can easily be done by placing a link on

         12  the DOE website. That would be the first stop in

         13  solving the transparency problem.

         14                 Here's step two.  The UFT urges that

         15  in order to take advantage of the transparency, a

         16  stakeholder committee be established, working with

         17  the DOE, the committee would analyze and review the

         18  statistics on evaluation and placement, as well as

         19  the graduation rate of students with disabilities.

         20  There are some other technical issues that need fine

         21  tuning in this bill, but this Hearing is not the

         22  venue for them.  I would be more than happy to

         23  confer with the Committee and its staff on these

         24  issues at your convenience.

         25                 So, and I also, Betsy, I want to also
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          2  jump in on that volunteer group that you have with

          3  parents.  As I told you, a lot of parents have come

          4  to me.  I have a group of 35 parents in the Bronx

          5  who want to be trained in advocacy and I'm working

          6  with Advocates for Children to come up with a

          7  training.  So, let's not replicate it, let's see if

          8  we can work together and I can bring those parents

          9  and we can collectively design that program.

         10                 So, let me just finish.  Thank you

         11  for allowing us to offer our perspective on the ways

         12  the schools can narrow the achievement and

         13  graduation rate gap between students with

         14  disabilities and their peers.  Ann Englesbe and I

         15  await any questions you may have for us.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well, let me

         17  just thank both of you for coming in and giving your

         18  testimony on behalf of all of the members that you

         19  represent that are involved in the, not only the

         20  largest system, but more specifically in the area of

         21  special needs.

         22                 Unfortunately, because of time

         23  frames, we have to hear from other advocates, I'm

         24  not going to ask any questions and I'm just going to

         25  move forward.  But, let me thank you for your
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          2  testimony and we look forward to working with you to

          3  refine the points that you mentioned in your

          4  conclusion.  Thank you very much.

          5                 MS. ALVAREZ:  You're welcome.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Next, we'll

          7  hear from Elisa Hyman, Advocates for Children and

          8  Ellen McHugh, for Parent to Parent.  Thank you.

          9  Welcome and come forward and just identify yourself

         10  and position and you can move forward with your

         11  testimony.

         12                 MS. HYMAN:  Hello.  My name is Elisa

         13  Hyman.  I'm the Executive Director at Advocates for

         14  Children.  We really appreciate the opportunity to

         15  present comments here today concerning special

         16  education oversight.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Are you in

         18  favor or against the legislation?

         19                 MS. HYMAN:  Well, at this time, AFC

         20  is not taking a position one way or another.  I

         21  think, philosophically, we're certainly in favor of

         22  any legislation that will increase transparency and

         23  data collection around special education.  But, we,

         24  I've modified my testimony today in light of the

         25  remarks and I just wanted to share sort of our view
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          2  about the issues around special education and the

          3  needs for additional data reporting.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.  Very

          5  good.

          6                 MS. HYMAN:  There's no doubt that

          7  there are long standing and widespread problems with

          8  special education service delivery and the outcomes

          9  for children receiving special education services

         10  are pretty dismal.  In  '04/  '05, there were 1,600

         11  students who received special education services who

         12  graduated with a regular high school diploma, out of

         13  50,000 high school age children.  In District 75,

         14  which has approximately 22,000 students, there were

         15  only 46 children who graduated with a regular

         16  diploma.

         17                 Interestingly, those outcomes have

         18  actually grown over the past three years.  They're

         19  better than they used to be, despite their

         20  incredibly depressing nature.

         21                 While timeliness of service delivery

         22  is a problem, there are a lot of substantive issues

         23  as well that really significantly interfere with the

         24  delivery of special education services.  I can talk

         25  about it for ten hours, so I'll just briefly
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          2  summarize some of the really big issues and some of

          3  them were touched on today.

          4                 Basically, the failure to utilize

          5  research- based methodologies; the failure to use

          6  small group ratios that have been objectively proven

          7  to be necessary for student achievement; the failure

          8  to use positive behavioral supports; the lack of

          9  appropriate functional grouping; insufficient

         10  training and capacity building for parents and

         11  teachers; poor high school special education models;

         12  and lack of transition services.

         13                 The Department of Education testified

         14  today about a number of initiatives they have taken

         15  with respect to the Tom Hehir Report.  I suggest

         16  that if, in terms of following- up on this, the

         17  Committee might want to inquire as to whether

         18  there's any objective analysis that any of the

         19  measures that had been undertaken by the Department

         20  of Education are actually affecting student

         21  achievement.

         22                 So, for example, the Department of

         23  Education testified that they had increased the

         24  number of children in collaborative team teaching

         25  classes.  It would be helpful to know whether
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          2  there's any objective information in New York City,

          3  establishing that children in collaborative team

          4  teaching classes have increased academic

          5  achievement.

          6                 I would also suggest that a similar

          7  inquiry be made about the Wilson program.

          8  Allegedly, there are a lot of teachers that have

          9  been trained in the Wilson reading program. Our

         10  organization has a terrible time trying to locate

         11  the Wilson teachers and trying to make sure that if

         12  there are Wilson trained teachers, they are

         13  providing services in small groups.  But, I'm not

         14  sure there's been any objective analysis of the

         15  effectiveness of those programs.

         16                 So, along the lines of looking at how

         17  to get an objective sort of look at how the

         18  Department of Education is doing, one of the

         19  significant barriers to ensuring effective oversight

         20  of service delivery of students receiving special

         21  education services, is the lack of an effective

         22  computerized data collection system.  I, you know,

         23  I, my position is, is that whether it's federal

         24  legislation, state legislation and regulations,

         25  federal court cases that my office is litigating or
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          2  this proposed bill, none of that will really cure

          3  the fact that the underlying data collection is not

          4  accurate.  I think that there has to be a focus in

          5  looking at how the Department is collecting data,

          6  because even if a bill were pass, with the

          7  provisions that you're seeking, if the underlying

          8  data is not accurate, the report won't necessarily

          9  be accurate.

         10                 So, I thought it would be helpful

         11  today to share some of the problems with the data

         12  system and perhaps suggest that it might be helpful

         13  for the Committee to probe more deeply into the kind

         14  of data that's already collected, the kind of

         15  reports that might already be available.  I think

         16  Carmen Alvarez suggested, and I strongly agree, that

         17  there may be existing reports out there that have a

         18  lot of information that should be publicly

         19  available, that are already generated through the

         20  Department of Education's CAP system.  It might be

         21  helpful to try to get those reports in thinking

         22  through additional reporting requirements.

         23                 So, some of the, a lot of the

         24  problems with the, with the data system were covered

         25  in the Tom Hehir Comprehensive Management Report.
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          2  So, we just wanted to share a few additional

          3  problems with the data system that were not covered

          4  in that report.

          5                 One of the problems with the existing

          6  data collection, some of the statistics that the

          7  Department of Education mentioned and that are

          8  relayed in the Mayor's Management Report are that,

          9  what many of us believe to be children who are not

         10  getting services that would ordinarily appear on

         11  that report, do not necessarily fall into the

         12  definition of children who might appear on a report

         13  indicating children who need placement or who are

         14  awaiting services.

         15                 For example, only children who are

         16  being placed in classes after an initial referral or

         17  after a formal review end up on that list.  A lot of

         18  the stories that we see, and I think you are getting

         19  from your constituents, come from school transfers

         20  or children articulating from one school to another.

         21    Those children don't necessarily end up on those

         22  lists.  I think the fact that they're not on the

         23  lists often skew the placement.

         24                 Transportation issues might not, the

         25  transportation data system is not integrated with

                                                            152

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  the special education reporting system.  So,

          3  currently, a lot of the transportation problems that

          4  people are experiencing, the long bus trips, the

          5  problems with routes, students not getting picked

          6  up, they're not necessarily tracked in a way that

          7  would be easily accessible to someone who's trying

          8  to manage the process.

          9                 There are not really effective

         10  benchmarks for outcomes for principals and regions

         11  to be held accountable in terms of student

         12  performance.  So, if the bill is being passed, we

         13  would recommend that it encompass an outcome or

         14  benchmark system as well, so that there's some goal

         15  being set in terms of the timeliness of placements

         16  and evaluations.

         17                 The current data system doesn't track

         18  any of the data already required to be tracked under

         19  the New York State Commissioner's regulations.  The

         20  current regulations already require the Department

         21  of Ed. To track whether a student is receiving an

         22  appropriate public education and if not, it's

         23  supposed to say why not.  The data is supposed to be

         24  organized so it can be determined whether each

         25  student is getting their appropriate public
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          2  education, a partial education or no education.

          3  School districts are supposed to prepare and keep on

          4  file summary reports of student data, including

          5  numbers of children served and numbers of children

          6  unserved.  Even though that's already been in

          7  current law for a long time, the Department of

          8  Education is not able to produce those reports.

          9                 There's also no way for the

         10  Department to run a report by school or by region of

         11  the staff at that site by their licenses.  So, the

         12  Department can't tell you there's five teachers with

         13  special education licenses, two counselors and two

         14  service providers with these licenses at this

         15  school.  Since they're not able to generate a

         16  staffing report, they're not able to have

         17  centralized oversight of the resources that have

         18  been either obtained by the schools or allocated

         19  within the regions. They also don't have those lists

         20  for the regions because the special education

         21  chairpersons have managerial discretion.  So,

         22  there's no centralized list of all the staffing at

         23  the region.

         24                 As Mr. Hehir indicated, the main data

         25  system, the Automate the School system and the Child
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          2  Assistance Program, the CAP, are not integrated.

          3  This creates a lot of problems with accuracy in

          4  reporting.  The codes for the CAP system for the

          5  schools and the codes for the ATS system are not the

          6  same.  The ATS system is the main data reporting

          7  system.  So, a child can have a different placement

          8  code in CAP than in ATS and there's no way to flag

          9  that difference.

         10                 Also, this means the Department of

         11  Ed. Cannot capture some basic information about kids

         12  with disabilities.  The only way they do it, is they

         13  have run dumps, like every two weeks, or every week,

         14  between their CAP and their ATS system and try to

         15  sort of cross- reference.  They can't get an exact

         16  count. So, they don't know how many kids with

         17  disabilities have been transferred, have been

         18  discharged, and they can't really tell how many kids

         19  with IEPs have even been suspended.  It's just a

         20  guesstimate.

         21                 In addition to the fact that CAP is

         22  not aligned with ATS, the Department also has a

         23  number of other data systems that are not aligned

         24  with either CAP or ATS.  So, they have a data system

         25  that has a lot of high school information,
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          2  transcripts and grades that's not aligned with ATS

          3  and CAP. Their human resource data system is not

          4  aligned with ATS and CAP. Their transportation data

          5  system is not aligned with ATS and CAP.

          6                 My office had to bring a lawsuit

          7  about the failure to enforce the impartial hearing

          8  orders.  We have a case that's been in court two

          9  years.  The City was, didn't have any way to track

         10  data on whether they were enforcing the impartial

         11  hearing orders.  CAP did not track that data.  They

         12  had to design a whole new data system just to track

         13  whether they were enforcing impartial hearing orders

         14  and now the court's ordered them to provide

         15  documents for every impartial hearing order over the

         16  last several years, every 30 days, until they finish

         17  for each region. Because, after two years, they

         18  still have been unable to generate any electronic

         19  information about that process.

         20                 CAP, as it's currently designed, does

         21  not track every aspect of IEP services.  So, if

         22  reports are going to be run off CAP, if one has to

         23  really look at what CAP is tracking, it only tracks

         24  some basic related services, certain special classes

         25  and particular other small aspects of the IEP.  It's
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          2  not a comprehensive system.

          3                 There's no data system that tracks

          4  the procedural requirements of the IDEA.  CAP

          5  doesn't track children that are underserved.  So, a

          6  lot of the complaints we get are kids who are not

          7  getting all of their related services.  Maybe

          8  they're just getting it once a week.  CAP doesn't

          9  effectively track that.

         10                 There are no books or guides to

         11  explain the meaning of the data fields in the most

         12  of the Department of Ed.'s computer systems.

         13  There's some training materials, but there's not a

         14  whole data book, so everyone is on the same page

         15  about what all the fields are.

         16                 For both CAP and ATS currently, there

         17  is no clear procedure for which schools, which sites

         18  or which programs get a CAP identifying number.  So,

         19  thousands of kids are not being reported on, mostly

         20  kids in GED programs, kids in annex programs like

         21  Twilights and New Beginnings, those codes are not

         22  separate. They're under their school codes.  So,

         23  even the reports that are being run now leave out a

         24  lot of students whose schools or sites don't have

         25  CAP codes.
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          2                 Of course, I think this was alluded

          3  to previously, there's no way to generate

          4  expenditure reports for delivery of special

          5  education services by site or by region.  So, even

          6  if the Department of Ed. Wanted to monitor how

          7  schools are spending their special education

          8  dollars, it would be incredibly difficult to

          9  generate a report that would enable them to see how

         10  many dollars were spent on special education

         11  teachers, how many dollars were spent on resource,

         12  on special education teacher supports, how much on

         13  assisted technology.  Those reports don't appear to

         14  exist, except in very limited circumstances.

         15                 Notwithstanding these problems, I

         16  think it's theoretically possible to gain access to

         17  some of the existing information as is, even until

         18  this bill were to be passed.  I can't speak about

         19  the reports that I get in any detail because some of

         20  them are confidential through litigation, but the

         21  Tom Hehir Report did note that CAP has a specified

         22  list of the kinds of reports that it generates.  So,

         23  if one were to obtain the list of reports that can

         24  be generated by CAP, theoretically, one could obtain

         25  the reports that are already run by the Department
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          2  of Education through a freedom of information law

          3  request or a subpoena.

          4                 I think that if there are publicly

          5  available data compilations that already run, that

          6  Linda Wernikoff alluded to about placements and

          7  evaluations, those would be available. Certainly, we

          8  have a lot of data, not on timeliness, but my office

          9  gets a lot of data through litigation that we would

         10  be happy to share with the Committee on various

         11  issues and also some statements and depositions that

         12  we took of the people that run the data system to

         13  the extent they're not confidential.  We'd be happy

         14  to share the information that we've received if the

         15  Committee is interested in looking into what, the

         16  additional data issues and what can be gleamed from

         17  the Department of Education.

         18                 So, just in terms of wrapping up,

         19  obviously there are a lot of issues we could talk

         20  about, but Advocates would be happy to, you know, be

         21  a resource to either the Public Advocate's Office or

         22  this Committee in terms of data availability and the

         23  existing computer systems.  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well, let me

         25  thank you for coming in on behalf of your
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          2  organization, Ms. Hyman, Advocates for Children.

          3  Let me just say that for all of the parents and

          4  individuals that reach out to you for assistance,

          5  thank you for what you're doing.

          6                 MS. HYMAN:  Thank you very much.  We

          7  appreciate the Council's support.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Next, we're

          9  going to hear from Ellen McHugh of Parent to Parent.

         10                 MS. McHUGH:  Hello again.  It feels

         11  like we've been  --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Pull the mic a

         13  little closer, if you don't mind, bring it down a

         14  little bit.  Good.

         15                 MS. McHUGH:  If feels like we've been

         16  hanging out together.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Can you press

         18  the button, if you don't mind?

         19                 MS. McHUGH:  I did.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Press it again.

         21                 MS. McHUGH:  Now, watch that  --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Yeah, much

         23  better.

         24                 MS. McHUGH:  There is it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you.
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          2                 MS. McHUGH:  The Board of Education,

          3  to back up what's been said already, numbers were

          4  tossed around today that were surprising to some of

          5  us in the audience.  At one point, 180,000 children

          6  were mentioned.  New York City admits to 138,000,

          7  the state says that they have 128,000 and the Hehir

          8  Report quotes 150,000 students receiving special

          9  education services.  That's all in the last eight to

         10  ten months.

         11                 If we can't get that kind of

         12  information correct, we're not even going to be able

         13  to assume how many children are in the system that

         14  we should be tracking.  It becomes a little bit more

         15  convoluted than just are the numbers there to

         16  support the services that children need.

         17                 The other thing that Ms. Wernikoff

         18  alluded to was the increase in the number of

         19  children who are being included through the Office

         20  of Inclusionary Programs in District 75.  That

         21  office has been dismantled in an effort, I'm

         22  assuming, to cut costs.  The person who was there

         23  has since left and has gone on to Columbia

         24  University.  Without some, the Board of Education

         25  will say itself, without some direct intervention by

                                                            161

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  a leader, there's not going to be any inclusionary

          3  services for children with special needs on a

          4  voluntary basis.

          5                 History has shown in the creation of

          6  some of the new smaller schools that statistics  --

          7  I'm whistling  -- statistics create the problem.

          8  Statistics of 20 percent in the larger high schools

          9  and less than seven percent in the smaller high

         10  schools indicate a lack of ability to assign

         11  children to schools on an indiscriminate basis.

         12                 If you are in a school and, or in a

         13  zone where there is a new smaller school, and you

         14  make the application to it and you are determined to

         15  be a child with more than the need for a resource

         16  room program, you are reasoned out of the

         17  application by your guidance counselor at school

         18  because the service is not provided at the school.

         19  It becomes a circular thing.  If it's not here you

         20  can't get it, if you can't get it, then it's not

         21  here.

         22                 One of Mr. Best's comments  --  I'm

         23  commenting more on the individual issues that were

         24  raised, not necessarily the statistical issues.  One

         25  of Mr. Best's comments was that he and the Board of
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          2  Education have a policy of excluding children with

          3  special needs for the first one or two years that a

          4  new high school is opened.  He made the statement

          5  that the school was not ready for those students.

          6  I'm going to say something that's not politically

          7  correct.

          8                 If Mr. Best were to make the

          9  statement that he could not provide services for

         10  children of color or children whose ethnic

         11  background was in question or children who had one

         12  finger missing, people would be up in arms.  But,

         13  for Mr. Best to make the comment that it's okay to

         14  exclude children for the first two, and possibly up

         15  to four, years of the creation of a school is, to

         16  me, a flouting of the law that he would quote to you

         17  as being flouted by the suggestion that there should

         18  be documentation of numbers.

         19                 The ADA, the Americans with

         20  Disabilities Act and the IDEA specifically cite that

         21  individuals cannot be discriminated against because

         22  of race, creed, color, ethnicity or disabling

         23  condition.  To me, I would prefer to see numbers

         24  kept on the number of children with disabilities,

         25  whatever disabilities they are, who apply to the
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          2  smaller schools and are told not to continue the

          3  application.

          4                 Numbers lie.  I mean, there's a quote

          5  about statistics, damn statistics and lies.  I don't

          6  want people to, I don't want someone to create a

          7  situation where they can say that 100,000 children

          8  have improved in reading without something to back

          9  it up.  I don't want to hear that there are a

         10  thousand more students receiving partial services

         11  than there were last year. The people who call our

         12  office aren't interested in partial services.

         13  They're interested in creating a level playing field

         14  that allows for their child to grow on an individual

         15  basis.

         16                 On a second topic, I am also a member

         17  of the CCSE, which is the Community on Special

         18  Education, Citywide Committee on Special Education,

         19  which is created by law 2590C.  We are there to

         20  advise and comment on special education programs to

         21  help create subcommittees on special education in

         22  the school districts and to publish an annual report

         23  on the status of special education in New York City.

         24    The individual who is doing this, who is the

         25  secretary for the association has not be able to
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          2  receive the information from the Board of Education

          3  that would enable him to publish an appropriate

          4  report.

          5                 When we ask for information, as with

          6  many of the other CECs, we are often dismissed as

          7  mosquitos, even though we could possibly carry some

          8  deadly virus.  We are still dismissed on mosquitos,

          9  annoying individuals who direct programs and offer

         10  education to our students.

         11                 This is a very difficult topic, as

         12  you can see, you keep losing audience.  It's a hard

         13  topic to talk about. Numbers are difficult, but

         14  numbers don't lie and the Board of Education's

         15  latest, most dynamic initiative is the collection of

         16  information.  Mr. James Liebman (phonetic), I think,

         17  is the individual who is responsible for the

         18  collection of these accountability issues.  If Mr.

         19  Liebman can be collecting numbers and relying upon

         20  those accountability, on those numbers for

         21  accountability, I see no reason why the City Council

         22  can't ask for the same numbers to be made public.

         23                 There are other things that need to

         24  be said, but I don't think that this is the forum to

         25  say it.  So, if you get good numbers, you're going
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          2  to probably get good assets.  Thank you for your

          3  time.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well, let me

          5  thank you. Concerning the Citywide Committee on

          6  Special Education Services, you're saying that that

          7  Committee is mandated by law and you sit on that

          8  Committee and that the person that's responsible for

          9  putting an annual report has asked for information

         10  and has not received that from the Department of

         11  Education?

         12                 MS. McHUGH:  Yup.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Is that report

         14  mandated also by law or statute?

         15                 MS. McHUGH:  Yeah, that's what our,

         16  those are our three jobs, to advise and comment on

         17  special ed. Programs, to create subcommittees on

         18  special education in the districts and to publish an

         19  annual report on the status of special education.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  And when is the

         21  last time you've published a report on special

         22  education?

         23                 MS. McHUGH:  Last year.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Last year,

         25  okay.  Well, if you could forward your letter of
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          2  request or whatever you have asked of the DOE to

          3  Counsel and to Public Advocate Gotbaum, we can try

          4  to follow- up on that.

          5                 MS. McHUGH:  Sure, thanks.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you very

          7  much.  Next, we'll hear from Carmen Santana, she's

          8  representing herself; Ronald Smith, Special

          9  Education, he's P.S. 162 Manhattan; and Leah

         10  Steinberg, representing Agudath Israel of America.

         11  Would the three of you please come forward?  Thank

         12  you.  We can start with Carmen Santana.  You're

         13  representing yourself?

         14                 MS. SANTANA:  I'm an advocate for

         15  children, but I'm independent.  I'm a parent of a

         16  child with an IEP.  I wear different hats, so it's

         17  hard to say.  I'm not here representing any

         18  organization, except that I'm an activist and an

         19  advocate when it comes to special education.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.

         21                 MS. SANTANA:  First of all, I'd like

         22  to say thank you for allowing me the opportunity to

         23  speak here today.  I'm a little disheartened that

         24  the room is empty, that the Board of Ed. People are

         25  gone, as usual.  It's almost like the people  --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  You still have

          3  a representative from the Government Affairs from

          4  DOE here.

          5                 MS. SANTANA:  I'm not, I'm not  --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  You're talking

          7  about the program people.

          8                 MS. SANTANA:  I'm talking about the

          9  people that should be listening to the rest of the

         10  people testify and I find it really discourteous

         11  when people, you're talking to someone or something

         12  and they just get up and walk away from you.  I just

         13  think it's really discourteous.  But, that's neither

         14  here nor there.

         15                 I just want to say that first of all,

         16  I support Intro. 344.  In my opinion, it's something

         17  that says, reiterates what the state and the federal

         18  government says, basically is that you have to keep

         19  data.  You have to keep data, you have to make it

         20  available.

         21                 What I don't understand is, and

         22  having listened to people speak here today, is, and

         23  this is my opinion, of course, and I'm just an

         24  activist and a parent.  You know, I don't have, I'm

         25  not an attorney like the gentleman sitting here
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          2  before and that kind of thing.  But, nothing in

          3  children's education, particularly public education,

          4  funded with public dollars, should be secret.  This

          5  is stuff that should be made available when

          6  requested.

          7                 I have requested information that I

          8  am still waiting, for years, as a health advocate,

          9  to find out.  I'll tell you specifically what I'm

         10  getting at.  Medicaid dollars go into the public

         11  school system, particularly for children that are

         12  special education.  I'm still trying to find out how

         13  is it that, how are the monies channeled, how are

         14  the dollars channeled, where, how do they cover, I

         15  mean, I can't get anything, for years.  I'm asking,

         16  how is the relationship between Medicaid dollars and

         17  the public school system, because we're talking a

         18  ton of money here, millions, hundreds of millions,

         19  billions, who knows.  Again, this is where we need

         20  this type of data.

         21                 You have a child  --  and I'm just

         22  going to give a quick example  --  who is supposed

         23  to be getting speech related services.  That's

         24  supposed to be covered by Medicaid dollars. Now you

         25  have a kid, same kid goes without services for six
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          2  months, but yet the money, the funding was supposed

          3  to be made available for that child before he enters

          4  the school year.

          5                 The dollars are supposed to be

          6  allocated for that child maybe late July, maybe

          7  August.  Kid comes into school in September and here

          8  we are in March and the services haven't been

          9  provided.  So, that's the type of data that I would

         10  like to see, because I believe, and, again, I'm just

         11  an activist, I believe that the Medicaid fraud in

         12  the school system is through the roof.

         13                 Then, I'm also interested in seeing

         14  some data, you have learning disabled children that,

         15  for the most part, my understanding is that less one

         16  percent of children in special education, actually

         17  graduate high school.  Now, how much of that less

         18  than one percent actually that are LD or that may be

         19  eligible for a Regent's diploma actually get one.

         20                 This is something also that's not

         21  talked about. When an evaluation takes place of a

         22  child, those evaluations, in my opinion, and I've

         23  seen plenty of them throughout the last three

         24  decades, are horrible.  They're not as comprehensive

         25  as they should be.  So, how do you provide services

                                                            170

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  for children, appropriate services that these

          3  children need, when the evaluation itself is

          4  questionable?  They're not as comprehensive.

          5                 Then we have independent evaluations.

          6    I'd like to see some data on independent

          7  evaluations.  How many children in the school system

          8  actually are told that they can have an independent

          9  evaluation when the Board of Education cannot

         10  provide a comprehensive evaluation?  What makes them

         11  eligible?

         12                 All this information, I mean,

         13  Massachusetts, I think, said if you get free lunch,

         14  if you're eligible for free lunch and bussing or

         15  something like that, then you're eligible also to

         16  get an independent evaluation.  I don't know how

         17  they determine that.  But, again, all of this is

         18  stuff that in reading Intro. 344, I don't see.  So,

         19  I'm just saying, I would like to see this data.  I

         20  think it's important.  There's a lot of money going

         21  into special education that's not accounted for.

         22                 I also would like to see as part of

         23  data is the disparities between white children and

         24  children of color.  I'd like to see it broken down

         25  to how many black males are actually categorized as
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          2  emotionally disturbed.  How many of those black

          3  males that are categorized as emotionally disturbed

          4  are suspended, how often, where do they go, do their

          5  services follow them, are they provided?

          6                 I'd like to see also some sort of

          7  data that talks about female of color in special

          8  education.  I'd like to see data on, I, the IEPs,

          9  the transitional IEPs, particularly for young people

         10  that are going from junior high school to high

         11  school.  I think it's important because it would

         12  also help to see what's going on, where are we

         13  losing the kids, where are they being pushed out and

         14  how is it they don't make it through high school?

         15                 The, again, as a health care

         16  advocate, I'd like to see the data also be provided

         17  for those children that have IEPs for the most part,

         18  and again, I'm going to say this, I'm not asking for

         19  names, dates of birth, that confidential material,

         20  I'm talking about how many of those children who

         21  have asthma, how many of those children are being

         22  provided the medical services that they're entitled

         23  to during the course of the day.

         24                 I mean, the last time I remember, we

         25  were, I was in here a few years ago, talking about
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          2  nurses in private schools and back then there were

          3  1,200 schools, public schools, and less than 600 of

          4  those 1,200 schools had full- time nurses.  So, all

          5  of this, I think, because it's a holistic issue here

          6  when you're talking about a child, whether it's

          7  special education or regular education or whatever.

          8  But, as a tax paying citizen, I'd like to be able to

          9  call and not be given the run around and say, can I

         10  get this data.

         11                 This just simply must be, because

         12  it's publicly funded, all of this should be

         13  available to everyone.  We shouldn't have to go

         14  through a foil request to try to get some of this

         15  information.  I'm entitled to that and I want it.  I

         16  thank you, Madam Public Advocate, for Intro. 344.

         17  You know I love you dearly.  I'll go wherever you

         18  want me to.  I support you.  My son, God knows where

         19  he would be.  15 years old and he's doing

         20  phenomenally well as Savarian's (phonetic) program

         21  and in two more years, after this, we'll be looking

         22  at college.  He'll be one of the few with an IEP

         23  that reads four year college and a Regent's diploma

         24  and I thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well, thank you
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          2  for coming in, not only on behalf of your son, but

          3  as an advocate demanding information that should be

          4  readily available.  We're going to hear from Ronald

          5  Smith.  He's either a parent or a staff member at

          6  P162M in Manhattan.

          7                 MR. SMITH:  Good morning Mr. Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Good afternoon.

          9                 MR. SMITH:  Good afternoon, right.

         10  Good afternoon Chair Jackson and Madam Public

         11  Advocate Betsy Gotbaum.  I'm a teacher at P162M, or

         12  I used to be, a teacher at P162M in Manhattan,

         13  District 75.

         14                 Because I'm in support of this bill,

         15  Intro. 344, and the reason I'm in support of it is

         16  because of the testimony I heard today from the

         17  other parents, especially the attorney who spoke

         18  earlier, what is it? Greenspan.  As a teacher in the

         19  classroom, you don't hear what parents go through

         20  with their particular children because you're busy

         21  in the classroom.  Today, I had the opportunity to

         22  actually hear someone, so I wasn't in the classroom,

         23  so I was able to juggle both sides of it.  It

         24  astonished me, of course, as it did other people.

         25                 Now, another thing I'm in support of
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          2  this Intro. Is because of the, like you said, once

          3  we have transparency, it's going to open doors for

          4  more positive things from the DOE.  I, personally,

          5  am involved with something with the DOE now and

          6  because there is or was no transparency, I'm still

          7  suffering through it.  So, again, you're on the

          8  right track when you ask for transparency.

          9                 What happened with DOE and especially

         10  District 75 is, it bred callous, okay.  Once they

         11  saw that they were not credible or accountable, if

         12  you will, to anything number- wise, data or

         13  statistics or even parent phone calls, they took

         14  advantage.  Now, when you take advantage of

         15  something at one step, you start to get, I don't

         16  know, a liking for it to where you get more, you see

         17  what you can get away with.

         18                 Now, I was put on administrative

         19  assignment and the place I was put there was, well,

         20  you know, District 75.  I saw people in the office

         21  take phone calls from parents and they way they act

         22  when the phone was hung up, if I can speak that way

         23  right now, but I will, you would not believe the

         24  testimony DOE gave today.

         25                 Now, I have a problem with that
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          2  because, at one point, I'm teacher under

          3  administrative assignment and I'm watching what they

          4  do once the phone is hung up from these parents and

          5  I almost wanted to say, what is your problem?  I

          6  guess they would have put me in more punishment, you

          7  know, if I would have even criticized them.  But,

          8  again, how many teachers get to see these people's

          9  reactions towards parents once the phone is hung up.

         10    I've got to live with that for the rest of my life

         11  and as a teacher.

         12                 But, it's okay, because, again, like

         13  I said, what I'm suffering through is far more worse

         14  than what will take place with anybody else and

         15  during another Intro. You'll hear about what I'm

         16  suffering through.  You will pass out.

         17                 Anyway, like I said, I know their

         18  callousness when it comes to dealing with parents on

         19  the phone.  That's why Council Member Lappin kind of

         20  got a feeling of it, too, when she said she was

         21  dealing with that gentleman.  But, again, remember,

         22  I'm like a testimony of first- hand experience with

         23  what's going on in the DOE and, again, sitting next

         24  to this person here, all these people are strangers.

         25    I just met her today, we had a long talk.  But,
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          2  I'm sure everybody's going to bring forth a story to

          3  you that's going to be touching and compelling.

          4                 What I'm here to do is to say I'm

          5  going to make a change, okay.  So far, I've made a

          6  change too, because at my school 162, I told you, I

          7  was a teacher there.  You know, it's not like I'm a

          8  teacher there now and the people who removed me,

          9  they're all removed now.  So, it came back at them.

         10  Again, today is not the testimony day for that

         11  particular, you know, story.            Again, being

         12  in District 75, we're dealing with emotionally

         13  handicapped students, autistic students.  These are

         14  not the type of students for us, as adults, to be

         15  treating as pawns, I guess the word is pawns,

         16  because in my school, at one point, they would say,

         17  we take precedence over the students. Again, I'm not

         18  giving names here today and things of that nature.

         19  But, I'm a teacher here, living testimony.  If I

         20  came here with my job, I wouldn't have it tomorrow.

         21  But, anyway.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Let me thank

         23  you for coming in and lending support to this Intro.

         24    Obviously, you do have a story to tell and like

         25  you said, at another Hearing on that topic, you'll
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          2  tell your story.  But, knowing that you were a

          3  teacher in the classroom and, you know, experiencing

          4  what, I guess, you felt were some negative, clearly

          5  inappropriate behavior on behalf of the staff that,

          6  after they hung up the phone with parents.  Let me

          7  just say, sometimes staff are also frustrated based

          8  on the fact that they're locked into a work

          9  environment that  --

         10                 MS. SMITH:  Oh, definitely.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  --  May not be

         12  the best and even, I used to be a director of a

         13  labor union and some of my staff used to make

         14  comments after hanging up the phone with members.  I

         15  used to tell them, as the director, I don't want to

         16  hear it.  I don't want to hear that type of

         17  conversation in the work place.  It's clearly

         18  inappropriate.  These are the people that you serve

         19   --

         20                 MR. SMITH:  Exactly.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  --  And they

         22  pay your salary.  So, and if you don't like it,

         23  maybe you need to look somewhere else.  But, I, as

         24  your director, I don't want to hear that type of

         25  conversation in the work place about the people that
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          2  you're there to serve.  That's how supervision is

          3  supposed to take care of that, to let people know

          4  about what the situation is.

          5                 MR. SMITH:  Exactly, again, that's

          6  why, again, I'm in support of this for Public

          7  Advocate, you know, Betsy Gotbaum, because I know

          8  that this transparency loophole is going to clear a

          9  way for a whole lot of things to change in the

         10  Department of Education in the coming months.  And,

         11  me, personally, I think it's going to more quicker

         12  than we even think because, you know, I'm that type

         13  person, that once we get on something, we can get it

         14  done quick.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well, we hope

         16  so and that's why we're here today.  Thank you.

         17                 MR. SMITH:  Okay, thank you for

         18  letting me testify.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Next, we're

         20  going to hear from Leah Steinberg from Agudath

         21  Israel of America.

         22                 MS. STEINBERG:  Hello.  My name is

         23  Leah Steinberg. I'm the Director of Project Learn

         24  for the organization called Agudath Israel of

         25  America.
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          2                 What I do at my seat is basically

          3  help parents get through the difficulty of getting

          4  special education services in our system.  Now, my

          5  testimony may be a little bit different than most,

          6  because I have seen cooperation from the Department

          7  of Education and I have seen it from the very top.

          8                 I've even had it up to the point that

          9  it was almost humorous this summer, when it was the

         10  end of the summer and parents started getting their

         11  related service approvals in the mail.  They're

         12  calling me to the office and they tell me, I got

         13  this in the mail, it's weird.  I'm like, what's

         14  weird?  They said, I got this piece of paper and it

         15  looks like it's an RSA.  I said, you know, maybe it

         16  is, maybe you got something on time.

         17                 You know, although there are a lot of

         18  things that has to be corrected in the Board of Ed.

         19  And I work on it on a daily basis and an hourly

         20  basis, I'm constantly doing this,  I do believe that

         21  there has been improvements and in a big way.  I do

         22  believe parents are getting more services, children

         23  are getting taken care of, many more are.

         24                 There still are problems and the

         25  Board of Ed. Does agree that  --  Department of Ed.,
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          2  sorry  --  does agree that there are problems, but I

          3  do believe that they do address it.  As the year

          4  goes on and you're talking about annual report, so

          5  it's interesting because I did write a letter and in

          6  it I look at the past year, because that's they way

          7  I operate.  There's always so much to do that it's

          8  so overwhelming, so like I sit down one day and I

          9  say, okay, what did I accomplish, what was

         10  accomplished, what do we have to do?  So, I look at

         11  the problem and I look if there was a solution.

         12                 There were problems brought to the

         13  attention of Linda Wernikoff this year by my office

         14  and, basically, when I communicated it with her, she

         15  did come back with trying to work with me, with the

         16  schools, with the parents.  There is a willingness

         17  of working together and I believe the, just like

         18  we're sitting here in a room and everybody here is

         19  interested in helping students with special

         20  education needs, it must be a partnership on all our

         21  parts.  We all have to work together.  A child with

         22  special ed. Needs cannot, cannot work in a vacuum,

         23  they can't function in a vacuum.  There have to be

         24  back- up from schools, from parents, but it must be

         25  coordinated.
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          2                 In the same way, I do believe that

          3  there, you know, if we speak together, if the

          4  Department of Education and the Council communicate

          5  together in good will, I do believe that a lot can

          6  be accomplished, because a lot is being

          7  accomplished. A lot of the children are getting what

          8  they need.  I have it over here, you know, written

          9  down, we have met with teachers.  We have a small

         10  thing, parents call, I'm mostly from District 20 and

         11  21, Region Seven, Region Six, so there was always

         12  this problem when a parent needed services, they

         13  would call the office, you know, the CSE.  The CSE

         14  is nobody, you know, who do you speak to?

         15                 So, I brought it to the attention of

         16  Linda Wernikoff and she mentioned to me, okay, you

         17  know what? It may make sense, we should have

         18  specific people designated for specific schools.  I

         19  got a listing of those individuals in Region Six and

         20  Region Seven.

         21                 Now, when parents call me and they

         22  have a problem, they have a name, they have somebody

         23  to speak to.  That also brings back a little bit of

         24  accountability on the person on the other end,

         25  because the parent will call me back and they always
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          2  know that I'm available and they do call me back and

          3  they will tell me, you know what? I don't know you

          4  gave me a name of this person and they're not at the

          5  phone.  I said, try again, try again, it could

          6  happen.

          7                 If it happens too often, I speak to

          8  the chairperson and if the chairperson hears that

          9  something like that has been going on, there is a

         10  reprimand and things do change, but they change with

         11  communication.  I believe that Linda is definitely

         12  willing to communicate and help these children with

         13  special needs.  Thank you very much for hearing me.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well, let me

         15  thank you for coming in and giving testimony.  I

         16  truly believe that things have changed also, in a

         17  lot of respects, for a more positive inclusive point

         18  of view, but, clearly, there's a, you know, we have

         19  a long, we, not they, we, collectively  --

         20                 MS. STEINBERG:  Right.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  --  Have a long

         22  way to go. When I say we, because it's not only

         23  them, it's them and us and they're doing their role

         24  and responsibilities as instructional people, as

         25  running the Department of Education and we, the
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          2  Public Advocate and I and other people, are doing

          3  our role from a legislative point of view to try to

          4  communicate with them, what they need to do to

          5  improve it, to make it even better  --

          6                 MS. STEINBERG:  That's true.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  --  And

          8  especially as far as transparency and accountability

          9  and keeping appropriate statistics, so that you can

         10  determine and evaluate those statistics to determine

         11  what do we need to do better to make sure that

         12  services get to the people that, the students, in a

         13  more timely basis.

         14                 I don't know if you were here when I

         15  asked the senior instructional manager, which was

         16  the Deputy Superintendent for Special Education

         17  Initiatives, Linda Wernikoff.  She said that in one

         18  of them, either her or Michael Best said, that one

         19  of the requirements, and I don't know which one it

         20  is, has to be done within 60 school days.  I said

         21  that 60 school days, out of 120 is either three or

         22  three and a half months, like one- third of the

         23  entire school year.  If it's not provided in that

         24  time, I mean, that's clearly an excessive long

         25  period of time, considering the fact that one- third
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          2  of the school year is gone. Would you agree with

          3  that?

          4                 So, I ask you a question, in fact, I

          5  ask each one of you, and in essence, I could not get

          6  a clear answer on whether or not she agreed that

          7  one- third of the school year, 60 school days, one-

          8  third of the school year to take to provide a

          9  service is an excessive amount of time.  Would you

         10  agree with that, Carmen?

         11                 MS. STEINBERG:  That's it's an

         12  excessive amount of time?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Yeah.

         14                 MS. STEINBERG:  Well, if my child

         15  were sitting home languishing without education, yes

         16  it would be an excessive amount of time to me.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Right, and I

         18  would think that  --

         19                 MS. STEINBERG:  Yes, however  --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Yes, go ahead.

         21                 MS. STEINBERG:  And I just do want to

         22  say, because she was trying to allude to it when we

         23  were talking about the testing and like what's

         24  considered a long amount of time for testing, which

         25  is what you're talking about.  The percentages and,
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          2  you know, when she was saying, it depends on the

          3  child, we want to put the child into the proper

          4  placement  --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Right.

          6                 MS. STEINBERG:  --  She was not, I

          7  don't believe, and maybe, you know, you can correct

          8  me if I'm wrong, from what I saw was, you know, yes,

          9  it's true, it is long.  But, sometimes the total

         10  picture, when you just say, is it long or is it

         11  short, doesn't really apply.  This child, take out

         12  his IEP, if I had to do a neuropsychological and an

         13  OT and all sorts of these tests, how long will it

         14  take?  I believe that that's what she was, you know,

         15  relating to, when she was  --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Yes, I  --

         17                 MS. STEINBERG:  --  Saying that.  I'm

         18  not, you know, that is  --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  No, and that

         20   --

         21                 MS. STEINBERG:  --  What I've heard.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  --  And you're

         23  absolutely correct.  She was saying that there are

         24  each, and I think that everyone up here acknowledged

         25  the fact that each individual case is an individual
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          2  case  --

          3                 MS. STEINBERG:  Right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  --  But, you

          5  can take all of these individual cases and do

          6  statistics as to what period of time, based on all

          7  of the cases, how does it take within the 60 days

          8  that you're mandated to provide the service?  What

          9  is  --

         10                 MS. STEINBERG:  I would cut that down

         11  though.  I would do it and say, how long does it

         12  take for a child which, at the end of the day, was

         13  given placement of learning disability, how long did

         14  it take for all those children to get evaluated, how

         15  long did it take for the autistic spectrum children

         16   --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.

         18                 MS. STEINBERG:  --  To get evaluated

         19   --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  So, in essence,

         21  subsections --

         22                 MS. STEINBERG:  --  Because that

         23  would be clearer. It would be clearer and  --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  At least it

         25  would be in that specific area  --
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          2                 MS. STEINBERG:  Right,

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  --  So we know.

          4    But, I think that, you know, those types of

          5  statistics could be kept by those areas.  But also,

          6  in general, what is the average time to do an

          7  assessment?  How long does it take?  Does it take 38

          8  days? Does it take  --

          9                 MS. STEINBERG:  Right.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  --  54 days?

         11  Then, let's assume it took 57.9 days, which is close

         12  to the 60, which says that 87 percent are evaluated

         13  within the 60 days, then you ask the question, why

         14  does it take so long and what could we do to improve

         15  it?  You've heard Ms. Alvarez, I believe, from UFT,

         16  said that they're understaffed.

         17                 MS. STEINBERG:  Right.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  And there's the

         19  other issues and concerns.  So, those are, I assume,

         20  some of the reasons why it may take whatever time it

         21  takes and, quite frankly, I don't know how long it

         22  takes.  All I know, based on what was given to us

         23  today, was that about 87 percent of those initial

         24  assessments are done within a 60 day time frame of

         25  the law.  But, I don't know, as I said to her, in my
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          2  opinion, I expect her to know, as the Deputy

          3  Superintendent for Special Education Initiatives,

          4  what is the average period of time it takes.  You

          5  know one thing, she said she's going to get back to

          6  us with that information, but I would expect her to

          7  know that.  Anyway.

          8                 MS. SANTANA:  Could I  --

          9                 MS. STEINBERG:  I think she's busy

         10  taking care of the kids?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Excuse me?

         12                 MS. STEINBERG:  She may be busy

         13  taking care of the kids.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  No, no, no, no,

         15  she's an administrator.  She's not in the school.

         16  She's not in the school.

         17                 MS. STEINBERG:  Right.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  In fact, in my

         19  opinion, that's part of her responsibility to know

         20  that information in order to attempt, and I'm sure,

         21  to make recommendations on how to improve the

         22  system.

         23                 MS. STEINBERG:  Right.

         24                 MS. SANTANA:  I'd like to say

         25  something, but I'm going to wait for  --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Let me just

          3  say, Ms. Steinberg, I want to thank you for coming

          4  in and I was going to ask you, specifically, you

          5  know, I'm glad to hear some positive aspects,

          6  because it's important, you know.  It's not about

          7  badgering or attacking DOE, but, quite frankly, you

          8  know, as you heard from the testimony of my

          9  colleagues here, many of them had, I guess, what

         10  people will call lost war stories or stories of

         11  situations where people have come to them for

         12  assistance  --

         13                 MS. STEINBERG:  I help parents with

         14  those problems.  That's what I  --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  I'm glad that

         16  you mentioned what district, you said District 20

         17  and 21 and that's Region Six and Seven  --

         18                 MS. STEINBERG:  Right.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  --  You know,

         20  and I'm just happy to hear a positive aspect of that

         21  and I wish that that was a hundred times over.

         22  Maybe we wouldn't have to be here.

         23                 MS. STEINBERG:  Listen, we're working

         24  on it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  I'm sorry, we
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          2  do have one more panel.  I need to get to those

          3  three.

          4                 MS. SANTANA:  I just want to say

          5  something about the time frame that you mentioned.

          6  This, I spoke to a psychologist on an independent

          7  evaluation as to how long it would take and one of

          8  the things that he said to me, depending on the

          9  child's referral, where it's an LD child, it should

         10  take, a good comprehensive evaluation should take

         11  some place between 20 to 30 hours of testing.  20 to

         12  30 hours of testing does not happen for one, for

         13  each individual child in the public school system.

         14                 That's why when I look at IEPs, I

         15  say, I don't care which IEP you give me, from the

         16  Bronx to Queens, it's going to be a bad IEP.  It's

         17  not comprehensive.  Everything is not included in

         18  these IEPs that we're looking at today.  You can

         19  have an evaluation and categorize a child by the

         20  school system and then you can take them outside of

         21  the school system, get them a real comprehensive

         22  evaluation, you're going to see two different

         23  reports and  --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.

         25                 MS. SANTANA:  --  Basically it takes
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          2  anywhere from 20 to 30 hours, just to test, and an

          3  additional maybe eight to ten hours to write a

          4  comprehensive.  So, this is just one child that

          5  we're talking about LD, learning disabled.  Now, you

          6  have children with autism and other learning

          7  difficulties, so it may be longer.

          8                 Can I just say, in conclusion, a

          9  week, a week is too long for any child to go without

         10  services that they may need. Any educator, any

         11  parent in their right mind, that knows well, knows

         12  that even two days, three days goes by, it's too

         13  long. When our children are learning to crawl, it's

         14  just a matter of seconds before you look around and

         15  the next thing you know the kid is holding onto the

         16  sofa, he's walking.  So, a week is way too long in

         17  my opinion.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you.

         19  Next, the final panel  --  I am starving  --

         20                 MS. SANTANA:  So am I.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  -- Is Jeanne

         22  Canna, is she here?  Jeanne?  No.  Okay.  Kurt

         23  Lebeck.  Is Kurt here?  And Bernard Hanisch.  You're

         24  the final speaker, please.  Anyone else need to

         25  speak on this subject matter?  Thank you.  The floor
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          2  is yours sir, Bernard, you're the last but not

          3  least.  Speak into the mic please.

          4                 MR. HANISCH:  My name is Bernard

          5  Hanisch.  A few years ago I got certified and became

          6  a math teacher, math major. I taught in the high

          7  school, Cardoza High School.  I had five classes.  I

          8  wasn't told I had any special education students,

          9  IEP students.  I found out when I had a test,

         10  they're allowed extra time, so they came up, they

         11  came up to me and told me they were IEP students.

         12  They gave me envelopes.  I put their test in the

         13  envelope and gave it to their counselors, the people

         14  they report to.  So, I got to know who they were.

         15                 Now, never, never did they ask me to

         16  evaluate the student.  So, when they say evaluate,

         17  but don't have teacher input, I don't know what that

         18  means.  How do you evaluate a student properly if

         19  you don't have student input?  That's my testimony.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  I'm sorry, sir,

         21  I'm sorry, I was just writing there.  Your testimony

         22  only took about a minute or two.  Just  --

         23                 MR. HANISCH:  Is that, my testimony

         24  is that  --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  --  Summarize
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          2  it to me in a nutshell.  What  --

          3                 MR. HANISCH:  Yeah, is that  --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  --  Are you in

          5  favor or against this legislation?

          6                 MR. HANISCH:  The Board of Education

          7  says they evaluate their students  --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  But, let me ask

          9  you a question first.  Are you in favor or oppose

         10  this proposed legislation?

         11                 MR. HANISCH:  I don't know what the

         12  legislation is.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Oh, you don't

         14  know what it is.  The legislation is to require the

         15  Department of Education to supply an annual report

         16  within 90 days after the close of the academic

         17  school year, which is June 30th, with statistics as

         18  to placement, how long it took, things like that, so

         19  that the City Council, the Public Advocate's Office

         20  and the Parent Advisory Committee and other people

         21  can evaluate how they are doing and ways, suggest

         22  ways to improve it and whether or not they are

         23  meeting the requirements as mandated by law.  That's

         24  what the proposed legislation is.

         25                 MR. HANISCH:  Okay, I guess I'm
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          2  supporting that.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.  Go

          4  ahead.  So, now, go ahead and summarize again

          5  please.

          6                 MR. HANISCH:  But, now, summarizing,

          7  I'm talking about the evaluation of the IEP

          8  students.  I was a teacher, but the counselors who

          9  the students report to never asked me to evaluate

         10  the students.  So, my point is, how do you, how

         11  accurate is the evaluation if a teacher's input is

         12  not part of the evaluation?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  That's a very

         14  legitimate question, because it's my understanding

         15  that everyone involved in that child's education

         16  should have been communicated with and gotten input,

         17  so that whoever is putting together the report can

         18  put together a comprehensive report  --

         19                 MR. HANISCH:  Right, exactly.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  --  And so

         21  that, you know, because the child may act one way in

         22  the classroom, and may act another way when they're

         23  sitting down and being interviewed. That's, in my

         24  opinion, and I'm a layperson at this, I'm not an

         25  expert, I'm not a teacher, but the teacher in the
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          2  classroom should have some input into the IEP and I

          3  believe they said that they do, but if you're saying

          4  to me that, as a teacher, you were never consulted

          5   --

          6                 MR. HANISCH:  I was never consulted.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  --  On IEPs,

          8  then something, in my opinion, was wrong.

          9                 MR. HANISCH:  So what does the

         10  evaluation mean?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Bernard, let me

         12  thank you for staying for the Hearing and I hope you

         13  heard a lot of information that will stimulate you

         14  to get more involved in this process.  I've heard

         15  from you before.  Let me just thank all of the staff

         16  that have been involved in this particular Hearing

         17   -- one second, sir  --  on behalf of the Public

         18  Advocate, Betsy Gotbaum and all of the staff of the

         19  Education Committee for being involved and

         20  considering that we started at 10:00 a.m. And it's

         21  now about five minutes to two, it was a pretty long

         22  Hearing, but a Hearing that was rightfully deserved

         23  and on time.

         24                 Let me just thank the Public Advocate

         25  for being the prime sponsor on this and, finally,
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          2  you got your Hearing. Let me just say, again, thanks

          3  to all of the staff involved and with that I'll call

          4  the Hearing closed.  Thank you.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 1:55 p.m.)
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